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This is Global Limited

Group Strategic Report

The cirectors present their strategic report for This 1s Global Limited and its subsidiaries (the "Group®) for the year
ended 31 March 2016

Principal activity
The Group's principal activity during the year was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United Kingdom

Business roview

This business review gives greater emphasis to those matters which are significant to This 15 Global Limited (the
'Company”) and its subsidiary undertakings when viewed as a whole

The year ended 31 March 2016 was the seventh consecutive year of growth n profitabiity for the Group with
adjusted EBITDA of £74 5m (as defined in note 2 below), showing growth of over 2 9% on the prior year s figure of
£72 4m Operating margin fell from 27 3% ta 27 0%

The main reascn for the mcrease In profitability was the 4 6% growth in our commercial revenues in the year,
which includes six months’ revenues from the acquisition of Juice FM 1n Liverpool Qur commercial revenues also
continued to outperform the wider market For the penod from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 our commercial
revenues increased by 3 8% on a like for ke basis, whereas the market increased by 3 1% n that seme pernod
(source Radiocentre website)

During the year, Global's radio stations achieved an average weekly audience of 23 8 milion hsteners (source
RAJAR Q2 2015 - Q1 2016 average) This compares to last year's audience of 23 1 million listeners and reflects

the continuing qualty and popularty of our statons Our stations reached 45% of the UK population on a weekly
basis

Global's Make Some Noise chanty continued to raise money for disadvantaged children and young people and to
give a voice to smaller chanties that find it hard to get heard Make Some Noise raised over £2 6m (2015 £2 3m)
in the year, and awarded grants to more than 40 charitles and projects across the UK

In Septamber 2015 we launched a brand new naticnal channel, Radio X Featunng Chns Moyles, Johnny Vaughan
and Ricky Wilson, Radio X aims to bring Iisteners the best fresh rock and guitar-based music across the UK

In October 2015, we startad construction of the new Global Academy, a university tachnical college to provide
academic and vocational training for students who want to work In the broadcast and digital media industnes The
Global Academy will open for the start of the next acadenc year, in September 2016

In January 2018, we brought the UK's number 1 hit music station to Liverpool, with the launch of 107 € Capital FM
Liverpoal Captital Liverpool wili play the tiggast hits from the hottast hit music artists of the momant The launch of
Capital Liverpooli followed our purchase of Juice FM from UTV

We continued to expand our Digital Audio Exchange ("DAX"} following the success of #s launch last year DAX
gives advertisers a single buying pownt to access the digital audio market Wa have now expanded the service
across 18 Eyropean counties and more than 150 audio platforms are offenng thewr advertising via DAX

The directors noted that the strong financial performarice, combined with the continued high gquality programming

output of our stations and sigmificant progress on a number of strategic objectives, represented another extremely
successful year for the Group

Dunng the year £49,166,980 of loans ware converted to 49,166,880 ordinary £1 shares which were i1ssued, called
up and fully paid ‘

Financial performance

The consolidated income statement 15 set cut on page 9 and shows revenue for the year ended 31 March 2016 of
£276 2m, an increase of 4 1% on last years figure of £2652m Operating profit of £60 tm rose by £3 6m
compared to last year's figure of £56 5Sm Operating profit is stated after charging depreciation of £4 1m (2015
£3 9m) and amortisation of £5 4m (2015 £2 7m) The loss before taxation of £9 8m (2015 £35 8m) has decreased
mainly due to movements in the far value of the loans and interest on shareholder and other loans

The directors consider that adjusted EBITDA (as defined in note 2 below) represents a koy measure of the
business performance as it demonstrates the underlying trading performance The results for the year set out
below show growth of £2 1m (3 0%) 1n adjusted EBITDA from £72 4m n 2015 to £74 5m for the year ended 31
March 2016




This is Global Limited
Group Strategic Report (continued)

Financlal performance {continued)

Year ended 31  Year anded 31
March 20116 March 2015

£m £m
Commercial revenue 2547 2436
Other revenue . 215 216
Total revanue 276 2 265 2
Direct cosis 487 505
Gross profit 2265 2147
Qther operating costs (note 1) 1520 142 3
Adjusted EBITDA (note 2) 74 5 724
Cperating margin 27 0% 27 3%

Note 1 Direct costs exciude deprectation, amortisation and charges or credits relating to non-recurnng items
including restructuring and integration costs such as launch costs including rebranding, redundancy costs and
vacant property provisions

Nowe 2 Adusted EBITDA comprises earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and ameruisahion and s stated
before any charges or credits relating to non-fecurning items including restructunng and wtegration costs such as
launch costs including rebranding. redundancy cosls and vacant property provisions

Golng concern

The directors confirm that, efter making engquines, they have a reasonable expectation that the Company has
adequate resources to contnue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason they continue to
adopt the going concarn basis of accounting (n preparnng these financial statements Further informaton around
the assesament of going concarn can be found on nota 1 of the financial statements

Future developments

The directors balieve that the current lavel of actimty will continue for the foreseeable future and they look forward
to a retum fo stable growth in the UK market The directors continue to explore a number of opportunities to grow
and axpand the existing business

Principal risks and uncertainties

Tha principal nsks faced by the business can be divided into operational, commercial, financial and credit nsks
The nsks are monitored and managed at a Group level and by local management teams

Operational risk

Audience levels at the Group's stations could erode the Group's position, both in local markets and in the national
marketplace if they were to decline To address this, the Group markets its radio brands regulardy and continually
strives to improve programming standards to increase audences The Group cames out research on its fistenars,
buillding profiles of their likes and dislikes, and uses this to develop both the sound of the stations, and the music
they play

Commercial risk

There 15 a nsk that weakness n the adverlising market could put pressure on traditional revenue streams To
address this, the Group has been developing its relationship with advertisers and agencies to ensure that the value
of its brands 1s fully realised Thus includes offering taiored solutions to advertisers and highlighting the breadth of
our products The davelapment of new media opportunities 18 at the heart of the Group's strategy, which ovar timea
will rectuce the pressure on our traditional revenue generators

Whiist the impact of the United Kingdom leaving the Eurapean Union s unceriain and hard to assess, based on
current UK growth forecasts there s a nsk that our revenues will be lower than forecast In additon, there are other
relptad factors which affect the Group, for example, tha impact of a tougher UK business environment on interest
rates and therefore tong-term bond yields and the group penston liabiibes

Financial risk

The Group Is primanly funded by both related party and bank debt Bank debt has been reduced in the year Tha
Group's operations are cash-generative, and general exposure to liguidity nsk 1s considered to be low The Group
monitors performance against s banking covenants on & quarterly basis
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Group Strategic Report (continued)
Credit risk

The Group actively mitigates tha nisk of payment dsfault by its customers by the use of trade cradit insurance and
by reviewing outstanding payments and provisions for payment default regularly

Key parformance Indicators

The business uses key performance indicatars which are monitored on a regular basis and include audience trends
such as weekly reach, listering hours, share of the market and demographic mix, as well as financlal indicators

such as revenus, adjustad EBITDA and operating margins Variance analysis s performed monthly and varances
are monitored and discussed within a formal meeting structure

This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by

0-56/

Director
29 July 2016




This is Global Limited

Directors’ Report

The directors present the directors’ report and the financial statements of the Group and the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2016

Results and dividends

The toss for the year, afier taxation and non-controfling interests, amounted to £7.9m (2015 loss of £32 5m) The
directers do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2015, Enil)

Directors
The directors who served duning the year and to the date of this report were

Lord Allen of Kensington CBE (Chairman)
A D Tabor

S G Miron

RFJ Park

MO Connole (resigned 14 August 2015)
M Gordon

W Harding

| L Hanson

D D Singer (appointed 9 November 2015)

Pohtical and charitable contributions

The Group is involved with a number of chanties that are linked to its radio operations and durning the courss of
the financial year, the Group's charittes were involved In fundraising activities which generated £3 2m (2015
£3 Bm) for its own and many other third-party causes

As well as providing significant radio airtime to promote the actwvities and events of ts chanties, the Group
provides a number of services to these chanties, including the use of offices and administration services, frea of
charge

The Group's donations to extamnal chanties amounted to £50,124 (2015 £127,697) No contributions were made
to political orgarusatons  The chantable and pohtical donations of the Company amounted to £nil (2015 £nil)

Future developments .

The directors believe that the current lavet of activity will continue for the foreseeabie future and they ook forward
to a retum to stable growth in the UK advertising market, notwithstanding the uncertain impact of the UK exiting
the European Union The directors continue to explore a number of opportunities to grow and expand the
axisting business.

Financial Instruments

Tha Group's risk management process and the policies for mitigating certain type of nsks are set out in note 20
Details of the financial instruments used for these purposes are N note 18 1o the consolidated financial
statemenis

Employee involvement

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its people and has continued to keep them informed
on mattars affecting their employment and on the various factors aflecting the parformance of the Group and the
Company. This 15 achieved through formal and infomal mestings Employee representatives are consuited
regularly on a wide range of matters affecting their current and fulure interests

Disabled employees

Applications for employment from disabled persons are always fully considerad, bearing in mind the abilittes of
the applicant concerned As a people focused business we make sure that we recruit the nght person for the job
every time, whatever their background ¥

In the event of a member of staff beconung disabled every effort 1s made to ensure that therr employment with the
Group continues and that appropnate adjustments are made It s the policy of the Group and the Company that
the traning, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible be identical to
that of other employees
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Directors’ Report (continued)
Qualifying third party indemnity proviaione

The directors benefit from quahfying third party indemnity provisions in place  The Group also pravided qualfying
third party indemnity provisions to certain directors of associated companies dunng the financial year

Matters covered in the strategic report

Detals of the principal nsks faced by the Group, including operatonal nsk, credit nsk and hquidity risk are
discussed in the Group Strategic Report

Provision of information to the auditor
Each of the persons who are directors at the tme when this Directors’ Report is approvad has confirmed that
+ 50 far as that each director 1s aware, there 15 no refsvant audit information of which the Group and the
Company's auditor 1s unaware, and

« that each directer has taken all the steps that oughl to have been taken as a diractor In order to be aware

of any relevant audit mformatian and to estebish that the Group and the Company's auditor is aware of
that information

Auditor

Under section 487(2) of the Companias Act 2006, Deloitte LLP will be deemed to have been reappointed as
auditor 28 days after these financlal statements were sent to members or 28 days afler the latest date prescnbad
for fiing the accounts with the registrar, whichever is earher

This raport was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by

0 S

D.D Singer
Director
28 July 2018




This is Global Limited
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors ara responsible for preparing the strategic repon, directors’ report and the financial stataments in
acoordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law raquires the directors to prepare financlal stataments for each financial year Under that [aw the
directors have electsd to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Intermatonal Financial
Reporting Stendards as adopted by the European Union ('IFRS"), and the Company finandial siatements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accapted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP*) and applicable law
Under company law the directars must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that year

In prepanng these financial statements, tha directors are requurad to

« select suitabla accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether the group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and the Company
financlal statemerts have been prepered in accordance with UK GAAP, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financ:al statements, and

» prepare the financial statements on the gong concern basis unless it is Inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explamn the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enabla them to ansure that the financal statements comply with the Companes Act 2008 They ara also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for faking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other rregularities

Directors’ statament as to the disclosure of information to auditors

All of the curent directors hava taken all the steps that they ought to hava taken to make themselves aware of
any inforration needed by the Company's auditors for the purposes of ther audit and to establish that the
auditors are aware of that information  The directors are not aware of any relevant audit information of which the
auditors are unaware
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of This is Global Limited

Wa have audited the financial statements of This 15 Global Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016 which
comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group Statemen! of Comprehensive Income, the Group Statement of
Financial Pasition, the Group Statement of Changes n Equity, the Group Statement of Cash Flows, the Parent
Company Balance Sheet and the Parent Campany Statement of Changes tn Eguity and the related notes 1 te 38
The financlal reportng framework that has been applied i the preparation of the group financial statements 18
applicable law and Internalionat Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union  The
financial reporting framework that has been applied In the preparation of the parent company financial statements
1s apphcable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice), including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken sa that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them In an auditor's report and for no other purpese  To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respoctive responsibliities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satsfied that they give a true and far view Our
responsihility 15 to audit and express an opinton on the financia! statements 1n accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) Those standards require us to comply wth the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves cbtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures m the financial statements sufficient to
gwe reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whather the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's
and the parent company's circumstances and have besn consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the drrectors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information mn the annual report to
idenbfy material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is
apparantly matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistant with, the knowledge acquirad by us in the
course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matanal misstalemants or Inconsistencias
we consider the implications for our report

Opinlon on financlal statements

In our opinion

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group s and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 March 2016 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended,

. the group financial statements have been propery prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union,

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared n accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requrements of he Companies Act
2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opintan the information given in the Group Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report tn respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 reguires us to report
to you f, in our opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returng adequate for our
audit have not been recevad from branches not visited by us, or

. the parent campany financial statements are not ih agreement with the accounting records and returns,
or

. cenain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

. we have not received all the information and exptanations we require for our audit

M. €. Los. Aatedt

Mark Lee-Amies FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behaif of Daloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, UK

29 Juiy 2016




This is Global Limited

Group Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Note
Revenue 2
Direct costs
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Operating profit 4
Finanes mcome 7
Finance expense 8
Net flnance costs .
Share of profit of equity-accounted investeaes, nat of tax
Loss before taxation
Income tax credit ’ 9

Loss for the year
Arrihutable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial sisternents

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £'000
276,247 265,195
{49,714) (50,513)
226,533 214,682
{166,410) (158,167)
60,123 56,515
1,637 2037
{72,301) (04,978)
{70,8684) (92,941)
672 583
{9,869) {35.843)
1,843 3,331
(7,928) {32,512)
(9,103) (33,619)
1,177 1,107
('r,s-zs) (32,512}

.




This is Global Limited

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Year ended 31

Year endad 31

Nota March 2018 March 2015
£000 £'000
Loss for the year (7,926) (32,512)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuanal loss related to the pension scheme 25 (1,138) {2,629)
Deferrad tax on actuarnal loss 18 204 525
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax {8,867) (34,616)
Total comprehansive losa for the year {8,857) (34,6818)
Arributable to
Owners of the Company (10,034) (35,723)
Non-controliing interests 1177 1,107
{8,857) {34,618}

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financiat statements

10




This is Global Limited

Group Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2016
Reglstored number' 06251684

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equpment

Equity accounted investments

Investments

Sumius on defined benefit pansion scheme
Deferrad tax asset

Current assets

Current tax assets

Trade and cther receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current {labilities

Trade and other payables
Barrowings

Provistons

Non-current llabilities
Borrowings
Provisions

Total labilities

Net liabilitles

EQuITY
Share capital
Retained deficit

Arributable to:
Sharehoiders funds
Non-controlling interests
Total equlty

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial statements

Notg

10
11
12
13
26
18

14

15

17

18
17

18

31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000
337,953 325,168 321,818
24,407 18,247 18,050
756 842 880
8,780 180 180
3,524 4,432 8,570
5,285 5,118 1,170
377,405 354,055 348,466
are 121 1,907
48,147 42,083 49,347
35722 43,097 73,144
82,248 85,301 124,488
459,853 440,258 472,954
49,548 47,233 51,014
42,297 40,462 29,169
1,221 1,011 1,124
83,066 88,708 81,307
820,872 843,614 847,472
1,336 2,723 3,529
822,208 846,337 851,001
915,274 935,043 932,308

!4555621! 5494!787! (459 354)

49,167 . -
(504,788)  (494,787)  (459,364)
455,621 494,787 450,354
(456,836)  (495,967)  (4B0,314)

1,214 1,180 980
465,621 404 787 459 354

The financial statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the board of directors on 29 July 2016 and

Dalg g on its behalf by.

Singer
Duector
29 July 2016

1




This is Global Limited

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Share capitsl  Retained Tatat Non- Total equlty
deficit controlling
Naie interests
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
At t April 2014 - (460,314) (480 314) 080 {459 354)
Loss for the year - {33,618} (33,819 . (33819)
Non-controlling interast share of profit - - - 1107 1107
Dividends paid to non-controling interests " - - {1,164) (1,184)
Purchase of non-controliirg interasts - - - {80} (69)
Increase In non-controlling Interasts . - - 378 37e
Actuartal toss relatad to the pension scheme 26 - {2 826) (2.629) - {2829)
Datered tax on actuariel loss 18 - 525 525 5§26
Non-controlling Interaste acquined in the year - J0 70 . 70
At 31 March 2016 - {495,967} {495,987) 1,160 @M!Tgl
At 1 Aprll 2015 - {495 987) {485,067) 1,180 (494,787}
Loss for the yoar - {9,103) {6,103) - {8 103)
Non controiing imerest share of profit . - - 1477 1177
Shares issued (n the yaar 16 49,187 - 49,167 - 48,167
Actuaria! loas relatod to the pension echeme 28 - (1,136) 1138y - {1 128)
Defarred tax on actuarial [oss 18 - 204 204 - 204
Dividends pald to non-controliing interests - - - {1,143} {1,143)
At 31 March 2016 48,187 506,002 (458&52 1&14 (455&1!

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial statements

12




This is Global Limited

Group Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Cash flows from operating actlvitles
Loss for the year

Adjustments for.
Depreciation
Amortsation

Loss on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment and intangibie

assels

Net finance costs

Share of resuits of associates and joint ventures
Movement in retirement benefit obligabans
Movement in non-controlling interests on acquisition
Increase in non-contralling interests

Fair value adjustments on pror year acquisitions
Income tax credit

Changes in:

Trade and other recevables
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Cash generated from operating activities

Interast paid
Income taxes (paxl)/ recoverad

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interast received

Diwvidands received from associates

Praceads from sale of property, plant and equipment
Acquisthon of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Acguisition of investments

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisttion of intangible assets

Acquisitian of nen-controlling interests

Cash flows from financing activitias
Proceads from borrowings

Repaymeants of loans and borrowmgs
Payment of debt 18sue costs

Cividends paid to non-controlling Interests

Decrease in cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial statements

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015
£'000 E£'000
{7,926) (32 512)
4,141 3.925
5,365 2,708

- 7

70,664 92,941
(672) (583)
(74) (183)

- 70

- 376

- 16
(1,943) {3,331)
69,556 63.434
(3,729) 7.262
(2,755) (4,643)
{1,203) _(919)
61,568 65,134
(5,655) {2.581)
(375) 1,787

55,838 64,340
80 179

757 929

- 118
{4,825) -
(6,600) {307)
{9,031} (5,200)
{6,223) {6,291)
- (69)
(24,842) (10,643)

- 200,000
{37,228) (281,250)
- (1.300)
{1,143} (1,194)
(38,371) (83.744)
(7,375) (30,047)

43,097 73,144

35722 43,097

13




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1. Accounting policies

a) Reporting entity

This is Global Limited (the "Company') i3 incorporatad and domiciied in the United Kingdom

These consolidated financial statements are for the Thig is Global Limited group (the "Group”®) and they compnse
the Company and its subsidiaries which are listed in full In note 34 of the Company financial statements

The Group's principal achvity duning the year was the operation of commercial radic stations in the United
Kingdom

The Group financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 29 July 2018
b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group have baen prepared n accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the Eurapean Union {*IFRS") and the Companies Act 2006

<) Functional and pressntational currency

These financial statements are presented in pounds Sterling (£}, which i1s the Group and the Company's funchonal
and presentational currency All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated

d) Baasis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a tustoncal cost basis The accounting policies set out below
have been applied consistently to the Group to all periods presented in these financial statements

For all penods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group prepared financial statements tn
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("UK GAAP") These financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “reporting date”) are the first the Group has prepared m
accordance with IFRS

The Group's deemed transition date to IFRS s 1 Apnil 2014, details of how the transiion frorn UK GAAP o IFRS
has affected the Group's reported position and perfermance are given In note 31 to the Group financial
statements The prinaiples and requirements for first time adoption of IFRS are set out n IFRS 1 First-tme
adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS 17) IFRS 1 allows certain exemptions In the
application of particular standards to prior periods in order to assist companias with the transiion process

o) Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements compnse the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiznes The
financial statements of subsidianes are prepared for the same reporting year es the parent company, using
consistent accounting policies

A subsidiary 15 an entity controlled, either directly or indirectly, by the Company An investor controls an investee
when it 18 exposed, or has rights, to vanable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its powar over the Investee

The results of a subsidiary acquired duning the period are included in the Group's rasults from the effective date
on which control is transferred to the Group All intercompany balances and transacticns, including unrealised
profits ansing from intra-Group transactions, have been elimmated in full

Non-controling interests ara measured at thewr proportionate share of the acquiree's 1dentifiable net assets at the
date of transition ‘

f) Interests In aquity-accountad investments
The Group's interests i equity-accounted investees compnse interests in assoclates and joint ventures

Associates are those antiigs in which the Group has significant influence, but not contral or joint control, over the
financial and operating pelicies A joint venture 1s an arrangement in which the Group has jeint control, whereby
the Group has nghts to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than nights to its assets and obligations for its
liabilites

Interests in associates and the joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method They are wutally
recognised af cost, which includes transaction costs Subsequent to inihal recognition, the conscldated financial
statements include the Group's share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity-accounted
Investees, unil the date on which significant influence or jont control ceases
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1. Accounting policies {¢continuad)

g) New gccounting standards and interpretations not yet eflactive

The following new standards, amendments to sianderds and Interpretations issued by the International
Actounting Standards Board (IASB") became effactive during the year ended 31 March 2016. The accounting
pohcies adopted in the presentation of these financial statements reflact the adoption of the following new
standards, amendments to standards end Interpretations as of 1 Aprit 2015 These have not has any matenal
Impact on the financial statements.

* * Amendments to IAS 27 Equity method in separate financial statements (effective 1 January 2018)
+ Amendgments to 'AS 18 and IAS 38 Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation (effective 1 January 2016)
* Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010 — 2014 Cycle (effective 1 January 2016}
¢ Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure initiatives (effactive 1 January 2018)

Standards effective In future periods

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that are
relevant to the Group's actwvities and are mandatery for the Group's accounting penods beginning after 31t
January 2016 or later and which the Group has decided not to adopt early

» IFRS 15 Revenus from contracts with customers (will become effective for accounting penods
starking on or after 1 January 2017)

* IFRS 8 Financial Instruments (will bacoma effactive for accounting penods starting on or after 1
January 2018} °

The impact of these standards 1s currently being assessed
— The mandatory adoption under EU adopting regulatons has not yet been confirmed
h} Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of the Group accounting policies and the reported amount of assetls, liabiitles, income,
expanses and other disclosures Tha estimates and underlying assumptions are based on histoncal experence
and vanous other factors that are belleved to be reasonable under the circumsiances The estmates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis

Changes in accounting estmates may be necessary if thera are changes in the circumstances on which the
estimate was based, or as a result of new information or further information, Such changes are recognised in the
panod in which the estimate 1s revised

Key assumptions about the future and key sources of estimation uncertainty that have g nsk of causing 8 matenal
adjustment to tha carrying value of assets an liabilites over the next year are set out below

impairment of goodwiil, intangible assets and property, piant and equipment

These assets are reviewed annually for impairment or more frequently If there is an indication of mpairment to
ensure that they are not carried above their estimated recovarable amounts. To assess if any impairment exists,
estimates are made of the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposal

Actual cutcomes could vary from such estmates of discounted future cash flows

Onerous lease provision

Where a leased property 18 no longer expactad to be fully occupied or where the costs excead the future expected
benefits, an onerous lease provision will be recogrused for that portion of the lease that 18 in excess to the Group's
requirements and not fully recovered through sub-leasing, of through value i use. The actual future expected
costs could vary from the estmated prowvision

Income taxes

Estimates may ba required in datemmining the leval of curnent and daferred income tax assets and habilites, which
the directors bel:eve are reascnable and sdeguately recognise any income tax related uncertainlies Vanous
factors may have favourable or advarse effacts on the income tax assets or liabilites These include changes in
tax legislation, tax rates and allowances, future levels of spanding, the Group's level of future samings and
estimated future taxable profits

Impairment of trade recelvables

The Group is required {0 make an estimate of the recoverable value of trade receivables When assessing
impairment of trade receivables, management considers the age profile of recelvables as well as any specific
known prablama or nsks
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This is Global Limited
Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

h} Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Useful economic life of assets

The Group's policy for applying useful economic lives and residual values of assets has been determmned through
applying histoncal expenence and laking into consideration the nature of assets and thewr intended us

Control over the Group's subsidiaries

The Group must assess whether it controls its subsidiaries when determining whether to consolidate the
subsidiaries

The Group's Influence over associates

The Group must assess whether it has significant influence over its assoctates when determining whether tt
should equity account for the associates

i} Going concern
At 31 March 2016 the Group had net liabldities of £455 6m (2015 £494 8m)

The Group has prepared detailed forecasts of expected future cash fiows for the three years ending 31 March
2016 ("the forecasts”) The Board considers the forecasts have been prepared on a prudent basis taking into
account current consensus forecasts of the radio advertising market. However the Group has also prepared a
worse than expected downside scenano Even undes this sensitised scenarnio, the forecasts indicate that the
Group can continue to trade for the foreseeable future and operate within its facility and the associated financial
covenants

The directors consider It approprate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis  The directors’
forecasts show sufficient cash will be generated from the Group's operations to be able to repay the bank ioan
and other obligations as they fall due

Iy Segment reporting

A segment 15 a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other
components All opsrating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's board of directors to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to a segment and assess its perfoormance, and for which discrete
financial nformation |s available (see note 2)

k) Foraign currency transtation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into pound Sterling, the Group's functional currency, using the
exchange rates pravaring at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured Foreign
currency translation gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assats and llabities denaminated in forelgn currencies are recognised in
the Income Statement Foreign currency translation gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the Income Statement within finance income or finance expense All other foreign
currency transiation gains and losses are prasented in the Income Statement within direct costs and
administrative expenses

The assets and habilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
consolidation, are transiated to the Group's functional currency, Sterling, at foreign currency exchange rates ruling
at the reporting date

The revenues and expenses of foreign aperations are translated at an average rate for the period, which
approximates the foreign currency exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions Exchange differences
arising from the translation of foreign operations are reporied in other comprehensive mcome

n Invastments

Investments are mcluded in the Statement of Financial Position (or Balance Sheet) at cost less amounts written-
off. representing imparment in value imparment charges are recorded if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1 Accounting policies (continued)
m}  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and eguipment are stated at cost, net ot accumulated depreciation and mpaiment losses  Cost
includes the original purchase price of tha assets and costs attnbutable to bringing the asset to its warking
condition for its intended use

Property, plant and equipment 1s depreciated at rates calculated to write off the cost less residual value of each
assel over Its useful ecenomuc life on a straight ine basis over the following psnods

Freehold property 25 to 50 years

Capitalised leasehold costs Over the term of the lease
Fodures, fitings and technical aquipment 3 to 10 years
Transmitters 20 years

Galns and losses on disposals of assets are calculated as the difference between the proceeds recetved and the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal and are recognised in profit or loss

impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment reviews of property, plant and equipment are undertaken whenever events or changes In
circumstances indicate their carying vatue may not be recoverable I the fair value of an asset i3 estimated to be
less than its camying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount Whera an mpajrment
logs subsequently revarsas, the camrying amount 1s increased to the revised estimate, but restricted so that the
increased amount does not excaed the carrying amount that would have been detemuned had no impaiment loss
been recoghised in pnor years Any impaiment losses or reversals are recognised immediately in the income
statement -

n) Intangible agsets
Software costs

Purchased software costs are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and imparment losses Costs
asscelated with maintaming computer software are recogrised as an expense as incurred

Software development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identfiable and unique
software products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following cntena are met

- it1s technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be avatdable for use,

- management intends to complete the software product and use or sell i,

- there s an gbility to use or sall the software product,

- it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate prabable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financia! and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
software product are available, and

- the expenditure attnbutabla to the software product dunng s davalopment can be relably measured

Software costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful iives of three ysars
Rad}o Hicences

Radio licences are valued at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impatrment losses Radio
licences are amortised over the panod of the licence N

impairmont of Intangfbl;a asgsets faxcluding goodwili)

Impaiment reviews are undenaken whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate their carrying vatue
may not be recoverable If the fair value of an intangible asset s estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to is recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subssquently reverses, the
castying emaount is incroased to the revised estimate, but restricted o that the ncreased amount does not excesd
the camrying amount that would have been detarmined had no impasment loss been recognised in prior years
Any impairment losses or reversals are recognised immaedtately in the Income Statement

o} Goodwlll

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisiton method The costs of an acquisition ts measurad
as the aggregate of the congideration transferred, measured at the acquisition date faw value and the amount of
any non-cantrofling interest in the acquiree Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and included In
administrative axpenses

Any contingent consiieration to be transferred by the Group will be recognised at fair value at the acguisition date
Subsequent changes to the fair value will ba recognised either within the income Statement or (n other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill on acquisition 1s initlally measured at cost being the excess of tha cost of the business combination over
the Group's intarest in the net farr value of the identifiable assets, liabiliies and contingent liabilties. identfiable
intangible assats, meeung either the contractual-legal or saparability criteron are recognised separataly from
goodwill Following nibal recogmbion, goodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumulated impaiment 'osses
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1) Accounting policles (continued)
a) Goodwlll {continued}

Goodwill in respect of an acquired subsidiary I1s recognised as an intangible asset Goodwill in respact of an
acquired assoclate or joint venture Is included within investments accounted for using the equity method

Goodwill is reviewead for impairment, annually or more fraquently if events or changes in circumstances mdicate
that the camying value may be impaired

Where the fair value of the interast acquired in an entity’s assets, liabihties and contingent labilites exceeds the
consideration paid, the excess 1s recognised immediatety as a gain In the Income Staternent

As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acguired s aliocated to each of the cash-generating units expected to
benefit fram the combination's Synergies Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit, to which the goodwill relates Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit 18
less than the carrying amount, an impaiwrment loss 1s recognised Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating
unit and part of the oparation within that uni is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation dlsposed of
is nciuded n the camying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation
Gooawill disposed of in this circumstance 1s measurad on the basis of the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash generating unit retained

As parmitted by IFRS 1, the Group elected not to apply IFRS 3 Businass Combinations (CIFRS 37) to business
combinations that occurred before 1 April 2014 As a result, goodwill recognised as an asset under UK GAAP as
at 1 Aprit 2014 has not been revised retrospactively to identify and extract intangible assets to be recognised
separate from goodwilt

[4]] Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivablas are recognised initially at fair valua, which 1s deemed to be the transaction pnce
Subsequently, trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any provision for impairment.

q) Cash
Cash and cash eguivalents compnses cash balances and money market deposits Bank overdrafis that are

repayable on demand and form an mtegral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of
cagh and cash squivalents for the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows

r} Share capital
Ordinary shares

Crdinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly ettributable to the 1ssue of ordinary shares are
recognisad as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects

Share premium

The share premium account represents the amount subscnbed for share capital in excess of nomina value, less
any costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares

Retained deficit

The retained deficit represents the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the Income Statement
Dividends

Dvidends on ordinary share capital are recognised as a ltability in the Group's financial statements in the pernod In
which they are declared in the case of intenm dividends, these are considared to be declared when they are paxl
and n the case of final dwdends these are declared when authonsed by the shareholders

8) Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers Trade payables are recognised inltially at far value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost Trade payables are classified as current llapiities If payment is due within one year or lass,
oiherwise they are presented as non-current liabtiities

t) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised mnikally at far vaiue, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently
carmned at amortised cost Any difference botween the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value s racognised in the Income Statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan faciities are recognised as transaction costs of the foan to the extent that it
15 probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down in this case, the foe 13 deferred until the draw-down
occurs To tha extent there 1s no evidence that it 1s probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the

fee 13 capitaised as a pre-payment for iquidity services and amortised over the parod of the faciity to which it
relates
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1) Accounting policies (continued}

u) Finance income and expense
Finance income compnsas interest received on cash balancas

Finance expense compnsas interest payabla on bofrowings, amortisation and wrte off of debt 1ssuance costs and
the unwinding of the discount on non-currant provisions.

interest 1s recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective Interest rate, Interest payable on
borrowings :ncfudes a charge in respect of attnbutable transacton costs, which are recognised in profil or loss
over the penod of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

v} Financial Instruments

A financial instrument 1s initially recognised at fair vaiue on the Statement of Financial Position when the entity
becomes party fo the contractual provisions of the instrument A financial instrument 1s derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows expire or substantively all nsks and rewards of ownership are transfarmed A
financial habiity 1s derecognised when the obhigation specified in the contract is digcharged, cancelled or expiras

Subsequent to nitial racognition, all financlal habrities are stated at amortised cost using the effactive interest
method

w) Current and deferrad Income tax

The tax expense for the perlod comprises current and defarred tax. Tax is recogrised in the Income Statemant,
except to the extant that it relates to tems recognised in other compreheansive income or directly In equity In this
case, the tax Is also recognised in other comprahensive income or directly in equity, respeciively.

The current mcome tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax Jaws enacted of subsiantively enacted at the
raporting date. Management periodically avaluates positions taken in tax retums with respect to aituations in
which applicable tax regulation Is subject to interpretation It establishes provisions whare appropriate on tha basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authonties

Deferred income tax 13 recogrused on tomporary differances ansing between the tax bases of assets and habiities
and their carrying amounts n the Statement of Finengsal Positon However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they anse from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax I8 not accountad for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Defarred income tax is determined using tax
rates {and iaws) that have been enscted or substantvety enacted by the Statemant of Financial Position date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assat is realised or the deferrad income tax liability is
settled

Deferrad income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be ’
available aganst whch the temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred income tax liabiities are provided on taxable temporary differences ansing from investments in
subsidiaries, except for defarred income tax liabiltties where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
1s controlled by the Group and # I1s probabie that the temporary differsnce will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

Defarred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidianes only to the extent that it Is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there 18
sufficiant taxable profit available against which the temporary difference can be utilised Deferred income tex
asssts and labilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets against current
tax Nabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and labifities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authonty an either the same taxabie entity or diffarent taxable entities where there is an intention to settie
the balances on a net basis

x) Employee benefits
Short term employee hanefits

Short-tem employee bensfits are expensed as the related service is provided A liability 1s recognised for the
amount expected to be patd if tha Group has a present lagal or constructive cbligation ta pay this amount as a
rasuit of past sarvice provided by the emplayee and the obligation can be estmated mliably

Termination benefits

Termination bensfits are payable when employment 1s tarminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employea accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benafits The Group recognises
tarmination benefits ai the eanler of the following dates (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b} when the entity recognises costs for a restructunng that 1 within the scope of IAS 37
Provisions, contingant rabilities and contingent assels ("IAS 37°) and involves the paymant of termination benefits
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the tarmination benefits are measured based on
the number of employeas expected to accept the offer Benefits falling due more than 1 year after the and of the
reporting partod are discounted to their present value,
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1 Accounting policles (continued)

x) Employee benefits (continued)
Defined contribution pension schame

The Group operates employee optional stakeholder retirement and death benefit schemes. Both employee and
employers are required ta make contnbutions with the emptoyers’ contributions for each employee determined by
the level of contribution made by the employee and the employee's length of service within the Group or
subsidiary company The employer's contrbutions are charged to profit and loss in the year in which the
contrbutions are due

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme which requires contributions to be made to separately
adgministered funds The cost of providing benefits under the plan is determined using an independent actuanat
valuation This 1s based on the projected unit credit msthod and i1s recognised in accordance with the advice of 2
qualfied actuary Past sarvice costs resulting from enhanced benefits are recogrused on a straight-kne basis over
the vesting period or immediately If the benefits have vested

Re-measuramant gains and losses, and taxation thereon, are recogmsed in other comprahensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss In subsequent penods. Re-measurements compnse actuanal gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included 1n net interest) and changes in the amount of any asset
restrictions Actuanal gains and losses may rasult from differences between the actuanal assumptions underying

the plan iabilittes and actual exparience during the year or changes in the assumptions used in the valuaton of
the plan habilibes

The defined benefit liabllity or assat recognised in the Statement of Financial Position (or Balance Sheet)
comprises the present value of the benefit obligation using a discount rate based on appropriate high quahty
corporate bonds, at the raporting date, minus any past service costs not yet recognised, minus the fair value of
the plan assets, If any, at the reporting date Whera the plan 15 in surplus, the asset recognised is imited to the
amount which the Group expects to recover by way of refunds or reduction in future contributions

v} Share based payments

The Group has a long term incantive share scheme under which it makes equity-settled share-based payments to
eligible employees The cost of equity-settled share-based payments are measured at far value at the date of

grant and recognised as an expense over the vesling periad, which ends on the date on which the employeas
become fully entitied to the reward

Farr value 1s estimated using appropnate models for the particular awards under consideration in valuing equity
gettled transactions, no account is taken of any vasting conditions, other than the performance conditions linked to
the pnce of the shares of the Company {market conditions) Any other conditions which are required to be met in
order for an employee to bacome fully entitied to an award are considered to be non-vesting condiions These are
also taken into account i determining the grant date fair value

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, excep! for equity-settied transactions where
vesting 1s condrtional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting rrespective of whether

or not the market or non-vesting condstion 1s sabisfied, provided that ail other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied

At aach reporting date before vasting, the cumulative expanse Is calculated, representing the extent to which the
vesting pencd has expired and managament's best estimate of the number of the achievement or otherwise of
non-market vesting condittons and of the number of equity instruments that will ultmately vest or, in the case of an
instrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting The movement in cumulative expense since the
previous reporting date 18 recognised in the Income Statement, with a corresponding entry in equity

Where the tarms of an equity-settied payments award are madified or a new award 1s designated as replacing a
cancelled or settled award, the cost based on the onginal award terms continues to be recognised over the
original vesting period In addilion, an expense is recogrised over the remainder of the new vesting pernod for the
Incremental fair value of the modification, based on the difference between the fair value of onginal award end the

fair value of the modified award, both as measured at the date of modification No reduction 1s recogmised if this
difference s negahve

Where an equity-settied award s cancelled {where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity or
the employee are not met), it is treated as if it had vestad on the date of cancellation, and any expense nat yet
recognised for the award 18 expensed immediately Any compansation paid up to the fair value of the award at the
cancellation or settlement date 1s deducted from equity, with any excess over far value being treated as an
expense In the Income Statement
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)

1 Accounting pelicies (continued)

I) Provisions

Provisions for onerous leases, restructunng costs, legal claims and other future costs are recognised when

- the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a rasult of past events,
- it1s probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation, and
- the amount has been reliably estmated

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses Provisions are measured at the present value of the
axpanditures expected to be required to settle the abligation using a pre-tax rate that reflacts current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the obhigation

aa) Revenue recognition
Ravenus, which 1s stated excluding any valus added tax, agency commissions and trade discounts

Revenue Is recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic banefits will low to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured Key classes of revenua are recognised on the following basis

Radio adverhising Date of broadcast

Sponsorship Over the term of the contract
Internst revenus Over the term of the contract
Transmission fees Over the term of the contract
Production of adverts On date of release to dlients
Enterprise revenue On agreed setlement with all parties
CD revenue On sale of CD

Revenue on barter transactions 18 recognised only when the goods or services being exchanged are of a similar
nature

bb) Leases
The Group 1s both a lessor and lessee of property, plant and equipment

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating
leases Operating leasae rental expenditure/income 1s charged to the Income Statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease term

Lease Incantives are recorded as a hability and then recognised over the lease term on straight-ine basis in the
Income Statemeant as a reduction of rental expensa

ce} Falr value measurement

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of farr value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and labiites Set cut below 15 an analysis of the valuation method of the
Group's financial instruments

The different levels in the fair value hierarchy have been defined as follows

« Level 1 guoted {unadjusted) pnces in active markets for identical assets or ltabilites

*Leovel 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within feve! 1 that are observabie, for the asset or
liability, either directly (1 @ as pnces) or indirectly (1 @ dernved from prices)

«Level 3 inputs far the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable
Inputs}

The Group has no assets or habiities where fair values have been determmned for measurement purposes
Borrowings (level 3)

Borrowings, as disclesed in note 16 and note 20, is calculated as the prasent value of the estimated future cash
flows based on the terms and maturity the loan and using market interest rates as applicable for a similar
instrument at the measurement date

dd) Financial guarantee contracts

Where the Group enters into financial guarantes contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other comparnies
within the Group, tha Group considers these to be Insuranca arrangaments, and accounts for them as such In
thus respect, the Group treats the guarantes contact as a contingent hability until as such time as it becomes
probable that the Group witi be required to make a payment under the guarantee
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements {continued)
2 Operating segments

_ The Group's chief operating decision maker has been identified as the board of directors The board of diractors
review the Group's internal reporting on a monthly basis in order to assess performance and allocate rescurces

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reporis used by the beard The board mainly
assesses performance based on adjusted EBITDA.

The Group has one reportable segment being commercial radio broadcasting in the United Kingdom Other
operations includes events, adverising commission, television and cd sales, None of these segments met the
quantitative thresholds for reportable segments in the 2015 or 2016 financial years.

The Group’s operations are virtually all complsted i the United Kingdom, the Group's aperations outside the

United Kingdom are not stgnificant

All transactions between segments are completed on an arms-length basis

The Group 1s not rehant on any major customers and no single customer provides more than ten percent of Group

revenueg
Commacasl radla bioadcaating Othat sparations Toul
Vot anced 3} MuIch Yo ended 31 March Yoxr endsd 31 March Yea ended 31 Maich Year ended 3} March YoW eRosd 31 Mach
2008 215 2018 2013 2018 2015
s €020 €700 E000 L 000 C00D

Toial ravanue ) 744 431 T 5 70753 770347 X
NS I MR (T . - -
Reveips fiom sYieing tirston o T A 40T 48 30,704 Tre et M558
Dvecl cosls (42 T14) 15051
Cioug pradt 228 63 214 662
Operating sxperser (18 998) 1142 247
Agueies EBITOA Ja53r .
Other xsemmst 4414y (15 68D)
Opering prad o 50915
Pert fimnce experen {1c484) 0290
Stare of probt of cquky-kiCoun’sd Nvestats il of 18 [1¢] 582
Loss batora Lasaton Bash [eXTy

3 Adjusted EBITDA

Year ended 31  Year ended 31
March 2016 March 20156
£'000 £'000
Operating profit 60,123 56,515
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4141 3,925
Amortisation of intangibles 5,365 2,708
Other operating expenses 4,508 9,247
Adjusted EBITDA 74,637 72,365
4, Operating profit
Oparating profit is stated after charging/(crediting)
Year endad 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £'000
Amortisation of intangible assets 6,365 2,708
Loss on disposal of intangible assets - 15
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,141 3,925
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 7
Operating lease rentals
- land and bulldings 5,518 5,036
- motor vehiclas and other leases 1,296 973
Lease income recevad {111) {111)
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
4 Operating profit (continued)

Auditors’ remuneration for audit and non-audit services dunng the year was

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and s assccates for the
audit of the Company's annual financial statements

Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates in respect of
The auditing of financial statements of assoclates of the Group
pursuant to legisiation

Other services pursuant to legisiation

Taxation compliance services

All taxation advisory semnces not included above

All other services

6. Emplayean

Yoarended 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £'000

B89 35

06 150

17 7

- 2 1

88 151

33 60

The average number of people employed by the Group {including directors) during the year was as follows

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
Number Number
Sales 634 615
Programming 382 373
Admunistration 233 222
1,249 1,210
The aggregate remunaration costs of thess employees were as follows
Yoar ended 31 _ Year ended 31
. March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £000
Wages and salaries 62,895 62,452
Social secunty costs 6,708 6,805
Contributions to defined benefit pension schemes 333 438
Contributions to defined contnbution pension schemes 1,462 1,243
71,398 70,938
8. Diractors
The remuneration costs of the Group's directors were
Year onded 31 Year ended 31
March 2018 March 20456
£000 £'000
Remuneration 10,515 5301
i Contributions to defined contnbuton pension schemes 88 o6
' 10,603 5387
. Number Number
Number of directors to whom retirement benefits accrue k] 3
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6 Directors {continued)

The remuneration of the highest pawd director was

Year ended 31  Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015

£'000 £'000

Aggregate emoluments ) 7,272 2,183
7,272 2,163

The amounts disclosed above represent the remuneration for the qualitying sarvices of the directors of the Group

IAS 24 Related party transachons ("IAS 24"} requires the Group to disclose all transachions and cutstanding
balances with the Group's key management personnal IAS 24 defines key management personnel as those
persons having authorty and responsibility for planning, directing and controling the activites of the entity,
directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entty

The key management personnel who are responsible for planning, directing and controling the actwvities of the
Group are the Group's directors

During the year a number of directors were granted loans In retation to a cash-gettied share-based payment
arrangement The loans ara due for repayment on the seftlamant of the scheme The loan balances outstanding

are

Yearanded 31  Year ended 31
March 20186 March 2015

£000 £000

Loans to directors in relation to cash-settled share
based payment arrangement 376 375
7 Finance income

Year ended 31  Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £000

Bank interest receivable 30 179
Interest on pension scheme assets 1,557 1,858
1,837 2,037

B. Finance expense

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £000
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 4,973 2,745
Interest payable on other loans 63,782 70,386
Movement in fair value adjustments on borrowings 1,681 19,705
Amorhsation of debt 1ssue costs 462 592
Interest on pansion scheme habilities 1,403 1,550
72,301 84,978
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9. Income tax credit

(a) Analysis of tax creditin the period

Current tax expense

UK corporation tax on the loss for the year
Adjustments in respact of prior years
Total current tax expensse

Deferrod tax credit
Ongmnation and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustments in respect of pnor years

Total deferred tax credit

Incame tax credit

(b} Factors affecting the tax credit in the period

L.oss before bafore tax

Loss before tax multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax of
20% (2015 21%)

Effacts of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Interest expense not deductible for tax purpeses
(Recognition) / non recognition of deferred tax on temporary
differences

Profit on disposal of property

Special factors affecting joint-ventures and associates
UK Dividend income from associates

Effects of changes in tax rates

Adjustments tn respect of prior years

Income tax credit

{¢) Factors that may affect future tax charge

Year eanded 31 Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015
£000 £'000

176 297
(116) (207)

60 a0
(2,003) (3421)
{2,003) (3.421)
!1!943! 53!331;
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2018 March 2015
£'000 £'000
{9,889) (35,843)
{1,974) (7.527)

1,568 1,830

45 546

{1,846} 2,008

- (213)

19 73

(154) (195)

315 256

{116} (209)
(1,943) (3,331)

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 21% to 20% with effact from 1 April 20156
Accordingly, the effective rate of 20% has been used in the computation of current tax

Further changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the Summaer 2015 Budgat Statement The
2015 Finance Act Includes legistation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to 19% from 1 Apn!
2017, and then to reduce the corporation tax rate further from 19% to 18% from 1 April 2020

The reduction in tax rates was substantively enacted on 26 QOctober 2015 and, therefore a tax rate of 18% has
been used in these financial statements to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities

in the 2016 budget on 16 March 2016 it was announced that from 1 April 2020 the comoration tax rate would
decrease to 17% The 2016 budget had not bean substantively enacted at the reparting date
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10. Intanglble assets

Software Radio

costs Licences Goodwlll Total

£'000 £'000 E'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2015 17,268 1.476 632,413 851,157
Acquisiions - 11,558 KYa 11,927
Additions 6,223 - - 6,223
Disposals {3,737} - - (3,737)
At 31 March 2016 19,754 13,032 532,784 665,670
Amortisation and Impairment
At 1 Apnl 2015 9,317 685 315,977 325,089
Charge for the year 4,231 1.134 - 5,365
Disposals (3,737) - - (3,737}
At 31 March 2018 9,811 1,829 315,977 327 617
Nat book value
At 31 March 2016 9!943 11,203 316,807 337,863

Software Radio

costs Licences Goodwlll Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 13,747 1.476 632,429 647,652
Acquisitions - - (16) (16}
Additions 6,291 - - 6,291
Disposals (2,770} - - (2,770)
At 31 March 2015 17,268 1,476 632,413 651,157
Amortisation and Impalrmment
At 1 April 2014 9,498 561 315,977 326,036
Charge for the year 2,574 134 - 2,708
Disposals (2 755) - - (2,755)
At 31 March 2015 9,317 6895 315,877 325,989
Net book value
At 1 April 2014 4,248 915 318,452 321616
At 31 March 2015 7,851 781 316,438 325,168

On the acquisition of Juice Holdco Limited the Group acquired a radio licence with a value of £11 5m At 31 March
2016 the carrying value of the radio licence was £9 Om and it had & remaining useful economic life of 5 years

The Group completes an impairment review of goodwill annually In accordance with IAS 36 imparrment of assets
{(“IAS 36" tha Group has completed a review of is operations and deternined that the Group has one cash
genarating unit (“CGU"), being the Commercial Radio Broadcasting CGU, and for the purposes of testing for
impairment the Group's entire geodwill is allocated to this CGU

The Group estimates the recoverable amount of a8 CGU using a value in use model by projecting pre-tax cash
flows for the next five years togather with a terminal vaiue using a tong term growth rate The key assumptions
underpinning the recoverable amounts of the CGUs tested for impairment ara forecast revenus and EBITDA

The fiva year plans used In the impaiment models are based on management's past experlence and future
expectations of performance

The key assumptions used for all matenal CGUs are a pra-tax discount rate of 8 6% (2015 8 1%), a short to
medium term growth rate of 3% (2015 3%), and a long term growth rate of 3% (2015 3%)

The pre-tax discount rate used 1s derved from a weighted average cost of capital ("WACC") calculation for the

Group and benchmarked against similar orgamsations operating within the sector. The long term growth rate used
does not exceed the average for the sector
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10. Intangible asaets (continued}

The total recoverable amount in respect of goodwlll, as assessed by man'agament using the above assumptions,
ts greatar that the camying emount and therafore no impaiment charge has been booked

Mangagement consider that i is not reasonably possible for the assumptions to change so significantly as to
aliminate the excess

11 Property, plant and equipment

Tranamitters, fixtures

and technlcal
Land and buildings aquipment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2015 16,605 6,391 22,998
Additons 2543 6,488 9,031
Disposals {1,428) (4.554) (5.982)
At 31 March 2016 17,720 8,325 26,045
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2015 801 2978 3,779
Charge for the year 1,600 2,541 4,141
Disposals (1,428} (4.554) (5,982)
At 31 March 2016 973 985 1,838
Net book value
At 31 March 2016 16,747 7,360 24,107
Transmittors, fixtures
. and technical
Land and bulldings . efuipment Total
£'000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apnd 2014 18,242 8,453 26,696
Addibions 3,442 1,758 5,200
Disposals (5,079) (3,820) (8,809)
At 31 March 2015 16,605 6,391 22,988
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2014 3470 5175 8,645
Charge for the year 2314 1.811 3,825
Disposals (4,883) (3,808) (8,791)
At 31 March 2015 801 2,978 3,778
Net hook vailue
At 1 Apni 2014 14,772 . 3,278 18,050
At 31 March 2015 15,804 3413 19217
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12. Equity accounted investments

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2015
Additions

(Decrease)lincreasse In equity accounted nvestments

At 31 March 2016

Investments in Investments In

joint vantures associates Total
£7000 £000 £'000

804 238 842
{292) 208 (88)

M2 444 756

Investments in Investments in

joint ventures assoclates Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 April 2014 568 I 880
Additions 87 - 67
Decrease in equity accounted investments {32} {73) (105)
At 31 March 2015 604 238 842
The Group's iInvestments in jomnt ventures are
Name Country % Ownershlp
EG Digital Limited UK 460
The Digital Radic Group {London) Limited UK 46 5
Now Digital (East Midlands) Limited UK 275
The Group’s Investments in associales ame
_ Name Country % Ownership
Wildstar Records Linuted UK 500
CE Digital Limited UK 500
Camposed Limited UK 500
13 Investments
Invastments Total
£'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apnit 2015 488 488
Additions 5,600 5,600
At 31 March 2016 6,088 6,088
Provislon for impairment
At 1 Apnl 2015 308 308
At 31 March 2016 308 308
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 . 5,780 5,780

Dunng the year the Group made an investment in a digital audio advertising solution provider

28




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements {continued)
13.  Investments (continued)

investmenis Total
£'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 Aprit 2014 488 488
At 31 March 2015 488 488
Provision for Impalment
At 1Apnl 2014 | 308 308
At 31 March 2015 308 308
Net book value
At 1 Apnit 2014 180 180
At 31 March 2015 180 180

14. Trade and othsr receivables

.

31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014

2018 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000
Gross trede recervables 34,087 28,426 34,676
Less prawvigion for impawmant {131} {379) {186}
33,936 28,047 34,480
Other debtors 3,638 5,637 3,920
Prepayments and accrued income 8,573 8,399 10,947
48,147 42,083 49,347

The followang table details the movements in the provision for the impainnent of trade recevables

31 March 31 March 1 Apni 2014

2018 2015

£'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year are 196 188
Movemant 1 provision {248} 183 8
Balance at the and of the year 131 379 186

The carrying value of trade and cthar recaivables s a reasonabla approximation of the far value of trade and
other raceivables

There are nc matenal overdus rade recervables that have not been provided against

15. Trade and other payables

31 March 31 March 1 April 2014

2016 2015
£'000 £000 £'000
Trade payables T.496 8,435 8,481
Other taxes and social security costs 8,293 6,809 7,589
Other creditors 3,693 3,969 4,646
Accruals and deferred income 30,367 28,020 29,008
49 548 47 233 51,014

The carrying value of trade and other payables is a reasonable approximation of the fair value of trade and other
payables ¢
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16 Borrowings

Current 31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015
£'000 £000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts 25,000 25,000 10,000
Accrued interest 17,297 15,462 19,189
‘_____,__4__2291 40.462- 20,169
Non-current 31 March 31 March 1t April 2014
2018 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans 142,736 167,274 34232
Other loans 678,137 876,340 813,240
820,872 843,614 B47,472=
The nominal value of the Group's borrowings at each reporting date s as follows
31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015
£000 £000 £'000
Accrued interest 17,287 15,462 19,169
Senior tarm loan notes 168,750 193,750 45,000
Fixed rate ioan notes 99,573 129,329 112,468
Shareholder loan notes 268.654 224,916 195,679
Connected party loan 1 84,045 75,673 213,205
Connected party loan 2 - 11,671 76,254
Loan from parent entity 204,883 205,440 206,137
833,202 856__,25 1 867,813
The fair value of the Group’s borrowings at each reporling date is as follows
31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015
£000 £000 £'000
Accrued interest o 17,207 15,462 19,169
Senior term loan notes ' 167,735 162,274 44,232
Fixad rate loan notes 122,945 160,048 133,090
Shareholder loan notes 309,465 278,317 231,437
Connected party loan 1 90,485 82,848 225,035
Connected party loan 2 - 12,566 79,258
Loan from parent entity 165,242 142 561 144 420
863,169 884,078 876,641
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18. Borrowings (continued)

The interest rates on the Group's borrowings are as follows

Interest rates on variable interest horrowings 31 March 3t March 1 Apnl 2014
2018 2015

% above % above % above

LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

Senior tarm loan notes 2.15% 215% 2 15%

Connected party loan 1 10 50% 10 50% 10 50%

Connectad party loan 2 - 10 DO% 10 00%

Interest rates on fixed Interest borrowings 31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2014 2015

Fixed rate Fixed rate Fixed rate

Fixad rate loan notes ) 16.00% 15 00% 15 00%

Shareholder oan notes 16.00% 15 00% 15 00%

Loan from parent entity 0 00% 0 00% 0 00%

Welghtad average interest rate on borrowings 8 59% 8 10% 9 30%

The Group's borrowings have the following matunty profile

31 March 31 March 1 April 2014

2016 2016

£000 £000 £000
Less than one year 109,656 108.210 108,018
Two to five years 948,080  1.032,428 865,977

Over five years - - 206,137
1,057,766 1,140,638 1,180,132

Less interest cash fiows

Senior term notes (12,722) (17,728) (1,338)
Fixed rate loan notes (72,611) (82,454) {(67,481)
Shareholder loan notes (102,126} {143,384) {117,347}
Connected party loan 1 (37,195} (35,583) (B4,042)
Connected party loan 2 - (5,240) (32,110)
Loan from parent entity - - -

Total principal cash flows 833,202 856,251 867,813

The sanior tenm notes are secured by fixed and floating charges over the assets of the Group

The Group has undrawn commiited borrowing faciities of £10 million at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2015 £10
million)
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17 Provisions

At 1 April 2014

Additions

Utilised during the year
Released dunng the year
At 31 March 2015

Additions

Acquired dunng the year
Utiised during the year
Released during the year
At 31 March 2016

The breakdown of provisions batween current and non-current 1s as foliows*

Onerous
lease
provision Totai
£'000 £'000
4,653 4,653
864 664
(1.349) {1,349)
(234) {234)
3734 3,734
13 13
26 26
(202) (202)
{1,014) {1,014)
2,687 2,657

@

31 March 31 March 1 Apni 2014

2018 2015
. £'000 £'000 £000
Current 1,21 1,011 1,124
Non-current 1,336 2,723 3,529
Total 2|557 3,734 4,653

The onerous lease provision Is a provision for vacant office and studio space that the Group has leased but 1s not
currently using The prowision s calcutated as the difference between the tolal future lease payments less any
amounts expected to be recovered by sub-leasing the space There are inherent uncertainties \n measunng the

provisions of the future outflows
18. Deferred tax

Prcperty plant and

Financiat Pension
equipment and Tax logzes Other TJotal
miangible assats Instruments surplus
£000 £'000 ‘' £000 £000 £000 £'000

At 31 March 2015 428 - 4,589 {ags) 1.005 5 118
Deferred tax asssts 428 - 17,145 - 1.006 18,878
Deferred tax liablities - - (12,578) (888) {13.462)
At 31 March 2015 428 - 4,568 {886) 1 005 5,116
Crediti{chargs) 1o the income
statement 1027 908 84 49 (o75) 2003
Recagnleed n other
comprehensive income - ” * 204 h 204
Acquired in the year (2,038) - - - = - {2,038}
Al 31 March 2018 317 [c8 4 8683 (833) 20 5,285
Deferrad tax assets 2,215 08 14,085 - a0 17,248
Deferred tax llabllities {1,898) - {8,432) (633) - {11,963)
At 31 March 2018 M7 808 4,863 {633} 30 5!285
At 1 Apnl 2014 - 224 842 (818) 1123 1,170
DCetferred tax assels - 224 13,603 495 1123 15 448
Deterrad tax liabilties - - (12,861) {1,314} - (14,275}
AL 1 April 2014 - 224 842 (819} 1123 1,170
Cradit/(charge) to the income
statement 428 (224) 3 927 {592) {118) 3421
Recognized in ofher . _ . 535 . 525
comprenansive income
At 31 March 2015 4}."2- - 4,589 (880' 1.005 5!1 18
Deferrad lax agsets 428 - 17.145 - 1,005 18,578
Defetred tax lablities - - {12,578} {BRB) - {13 462)
At 31 March 2015 428 - 4 569 (B8S) 1&95 5!1 16
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18 Daferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax 13 provided i full on taxable temporary differences under the liabilty method using applicable tax
rates Deferred tax assets and liabihties are only offset where there I1s a legally enforceable right of offset and
there is an intenton to settla the balances net

The following table hists the Group's unrecognised deferred tax assets
31 March 31 March

2018 2015

£000 £000

Proparty, plant and equipment 5,540 7234
Tax losses 15,1186 17,529
Other 31 4
20,687 24,767

These potential deferrad tax assets have not been recognmised on the basis that it is pot sufficiently certain when
taxable profits that can be utiised to absorb the raversal of the temporary difference will be made in the future

19 Share capital

31 March 31 March 1 Apnil 2014

2016 2015
£ £ £
Issued, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 45,166,981 1 1
49,166,981 1 1

During the year £49,166,980 of loans were convertad to 49, 166,980 ordinary £1 shares which were 1ssued, called
up and fully paid .

20. Funding and financlal rlsk management

Financlal risk management

The Group holds and uses financial instruments to finance its operations and to manage its interest rate and
hiquidity nsks The Group pnimanily finances its operations using share capital, revenug and borrowings

The Group's actvites expose ¢ to a vanety of financial nsks market riek (intarest rate ngk and foreign exchange
nsk), cradit nsk and houichty nisk

The Group i1s primanly funded by debt Bank debt has been reduced during the year The Group's operations are
cash generative, and a general exposure to iquidity risk 1s considered to be iow The Group menitors performance
agamst its banking covenants on a quarterly basis

The Group does not engage In tradtng or spaculative activities using denvative financial instruments
The carrying amount of financlal asseta represents the maximum credit exposure
Market risk

Market risk 15 the nsk that changes in prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the
Group's mcome or the value of its holdings of financial Instruments

intarest rate nsk

Interest rate risk 1s the risk of @ change in the Group's cash flows due to a change in interast rates The Group has
both fixed rata and floating rate borrowings The ratio of fixed to floating rate borrowings 1s momtored on an
ongong basis to ensure that the Group's 1S not too exposed to vanabiity in interest rates

Foreign exchange nsk

Forelgn exchange nsk is the dsk of a changa n the Group’s cash flows due to a change n foreign cucrandy
exchange rate The vast majarily of the Group's incoms and expenditure Is in pound Sterling therefore the Group
ig not exposed to significant foraign exchange risk
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20. Funding and financial risk managament {continued)

Market risk (continued)

Credit nsk

Credit risk ts the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter party to a financial Instrument fails to
meet its contractual cbligations, and anses principally from the Group's receivables from customers

The directors consider the Group's credit nsk from cash, cash equivalants and deposits to be fow as the Group
only enters transactions with banks or financral Institutions with a credit rating of A or above

The Group has policies n place to manage potential credit risk from trade receivables The Group mitigates the
nsk of payment default by its customers by the use of trade credit insurance for high vaiue customers Customer
cradit terms are determined using Independent ratings agancy data and regularly updated to reflect any changes
in customer circumstances of trading conditions Trade receivables are reviewed on a regular basis by the
Group's credit contro! department to ensure debts are racovered n full

The directors do not expect any significant losses of receivables that have not been provided for
Liquidhty nsk

Liquicity nisk Is the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial ohigations as they fall due The
Group's finance department ragularly monitors forecasts of the Group's hguidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficient cash to maet operational needs

Capital Management

The Group relies on capital for organic growth The Group defines capital as egquity as shown in the Statement of
Financial Position plus net debt (tota! borrowings less cash) and seeks to achieve an acceptable retum on gross
capital

The Group manages its capital structure using a number of measures and taking tnto account its future strategic
plans Such measures include ensuning the Group matntains sufficient liquidity from the cash that the Group has
generated from operations

Fair value
Financial assets compnise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
Financial labities compnse trade and other payables and borrowings

The fair value of trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivaients and trade and other payables s not
matenally different from thesr carrying value

The following table shows the fair value of borrowings, including their value n the fair value hierarchy

Farr value 31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014

tuerarchy 2016 2015
£'0006 £'000 £'000
Senior tarm notes Level 3 167,736 192,274 44,232
Fixed rate loan notes level 3 122,945 160,048 133,090
Sharsholder loan notes Levei 3 309,465 278,317 231,437
Connacted party loan 1 Level 3 90,485 82,848 225,035
Connected party loan 2 Level 3 - 12,566 76,258
Loan from parent entity Level 3 155,242 142,561 144,420
845!872 @#614 857,472
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21 Non-controliing interests

Non- Total
controlling
. Interests
£000 £'000
At 1 Apnl 2015 1,180 1,180
Share of profit after taxation for the year 1177 1,177
Dividends paid to minornity interests (1,143) {1,143)
At 31 March 2016 1,214 1,214
Non- . Total
controlling
interests
£'000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2014 960 880
Share of profit after taxaton for the year 1.107 1,107
Purchase of minonty interests (69) (69)
Increase in minonty interests are 376
Drvidends pald to minority interests (1,184) {1,194)
At 31 March 2015 1,180 1,180

22, Coemmitments and contingencies

The Grc'mp's commitmsants under non-cancellable oparating ieases are set out below
3 March 31 March

2018 2015
£000 £000
Land and bulldings
Within one year 4,242 4,470
Bstwaen two and five years 11,838 15,778
After five years 8,563 8,562
24,341 28,808
31 March 31 March
2016 2015
. £000 £'000
Motor vehlcies and equipment
Within one year 987 1.253
Between two and five years - 858 1,407
After five years - -
1,942 2,660

The Group's future minimum lease rental income expectaed to be recaved under non-cancellable operating leases
is asg follows
31 March 31 March

2016 2015
£'000 £'000

Lease rental Income
Within one year 86 -
Batween two and five years 3B4 -
After five years 143 -
823 -

The Group leases property, motor vehicles and office equipment The Group's leasss do not include any matenal
contingent lease payments, purchase options, escalation clauses or restncton clauses
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23. Reolated party transactions

During the year the Group traded with Its associates, joint ventures and with entites with common control to the
Group All ransactions were In the normal course of business and priced under normal trade terms

The Company's immediate parent company 1s Glabal Radio Group Limifed (Jersey) Details of loans outstanding
with this entity are given in note 16

Digital Radio Group (London) Limited operates a cigual racio multiplex and during the year the Group pad
£105,000 (2015 £133,000} to this company for transmission services The Group had an cutstanding balance of
£ni at 31 March 2016 {2015 £9,000)

Radio Centre Limited 1s a trade body promoting commaerctal radio to adverttsers Radio Centre Limited 18 funded
by levies paid by the commercial radio industry in the UK based on volumes of advertising revenue During the
year the Group paid £1,371,000 (2015 £1,746,000) in lewies to Radio Centre Limited and had an outstanding
balance of £mil at 31 March 2016 (2015 £nil)

CE Dngtal operates throe focal digital rado multiplexes Dunng the year the Group pad £2,755000 (2015
£2,659.000) to CE Digital in respect of transmission services and racewed £nil (2015 £100,000) n respect of

iegal expertise and engineerng time The Group had an outstanding balance of £qll at 31 March 2016 (2015
£633,000)

Now Digital East Midlands bimited, an associate of the Group, operates digital radio multiplexaes and dunng the
year the Company paxt £653,000 (2015 £765,000) to this company for transmission services The Group had an
outstanding creditor of Enil at 31 March 2016 {2015 £65,000)

Durning the year a number of Directors wara granted loans in relation to @ cash-settled share based payment
arrangement The loans are due for repayment on the settlement of the scheme (see note 25} The loan balances
totalled £374,770 at 31 March 2018 (2015 £374,770)

Dunng the yaar the Group had a number of recharge accounts with varnous members of the Global Entertainment
and Talent Group, with whom the Group shares a Director As at 31 March 2016 the outstanding debtor was
£683,000 (2015 £1,848,000) This has been fully repaid since the year end Duning the year the Group charged
the Global Entertamment and Talent Group £40,000 (2015 £40,000) in respact of occupancy, and Giobal
Entertainment and Talent Group charged the Group £60,000 (2015 £60,000) in respect of consultancy

The Group considers the directors to be key management personnel Related party fransachions with key
management personnel have bean disclosed i note 6

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no other related party transactions dunng the year
24. Business combinations

On 8 October 2015 the Group acquired the entire share capitat (and 100% of the voling nghts) of Juice Hoidco
Limited through its subsidiary Global Radio Hoidings Limited Jurce Holdco Limited was @ radio broadcaster n
Liverpool

The primary reason for the acquisihion was the purchase of a radic icence, shown below in intangibios, to expand
the Group's Capital FM radio station to the Liverpool area The goodwili has been allocated to the Commaercial
Radio Broadcasting cash generating unit None of the purchased goodwill s deductible for tax purposes

The main factor leading to the recognibon of goodwill was the expected additonal adverising revenue and the
expected operational efficencies through economies of scale -

The details of the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilibes acquired, purchase consideration and goodwil! are
as follows

Fair value
£000
Intangible assets 11,556
Deferrad tax asset - 43
Trade and other receivables 335
Cash 585
Trade and other payables (5,373)
Provisions {28)
Defsrred tax liability {2.081)
Net assets acquired 5,049
Goodwill 371
Total conslderation 5,420
Satisfled by 5,420
Cash 5,420
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24  Businass combinations {continued)

There wera fair value adjustments to property, plant and equipment (decrease of £199,000) to wnte off assets
which had no value to the Group, to intangible assets {(an increase of £356,000 to the acquired radio hcence), to
recognise a deferred tax asset (£43,000) and to recogrise a deferred tax lisbiity (£64,000) for the acquired
Intangible assets

The total consideration was paid in full on the acquisition of Juice Holdco Limited and there was no deferred
consideration in refation 1o the transaction

Acquisition related costs of £472,000 have been charged to agdministration expenses In the income Statement for
the year endsd 31 March 2018

Since the acquisiton date Juice Holdeo Limted has contributed £1,4567,000 to the Group revenue If the
acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2015 the contribution Yo Group revenue would hava been £2,387,000.

25. Share-based payments
The Group operates cash-settled share-based payment arrangements as follows
The Growth Shares Schemae {“the Scheme"”)

On 30 January 2015, a number of directors acquired C, D, E and F shares in GRHL, for which the directers pad
unrestricted market value The C, D, E and F shares are subject to a put and cafl option structure whereby the
dirgctors may sell the shares to GRHL. or GRHL may acquire the shares from the directors for cash, within
vanious 80 day windows between on 1 August 2017 and 30 September 2025 The value at which the shares can
be bought or sold shall ba determined by a formula based on the growth in value of the shares over a certain
minimum threshold valie The sharaes provide the holder with an interest in the growth of tha business beyond
that threshold, which has been set at 20% above the original value

The number of C,D, E and F shares issued in 2015 and outstanding at 31 March 2016 was 375,085 (31 March
2015 375085) -

The EBITDA used to determine the vaiue of the C,0 E and F Shares will be the EBITDA for the year ended
immediately before the date of disposal

Share-based payment expense
The charge recogrusad in the Income Statament in respect of the Scheme was £5,488,000 (2015 £3,666,000)
Share-based payment liabllity

The Scheme reguires tha Group to pay the intrinsic value of these share-based payments to the employes at the
date of exercise The lability 1s re-valued at each reporting dste and sattlement date with any changes to fair
value being recognised in the profit and loss account. The Group has recorded liabillties In respect of unvested
grants of £9,165,000 {2015 £3,686,000)

26 Dofined benefit panslon schemes

The Group operates three pension schemes on behalf of its employges The Global Radio Group Personal
Pension Plan ("GRGPPP") i1s a defined contribution scheme

All current employees are aligible to join the GRGPPP, which new employees are enrolled in automatically when
they begin employment with the Group At 31 March 2018 1,219 {2015 1,330) employees were active members
of this scheme The Group makes age-related empioyer contnibutions to the scheme

The Capital Radio pic Pension and Assurance Scheme {("CRPPAS") and the Midlands Radic Group Pension
Schema ("MRGPS") are contributory defined benefit schemes Both defined benefit schemes were closed to new
employeas from 31 March 1985 At 31 March 2018, the MRGPS had 7 (2015 7) active members and the
CRPPAS had 4 {2015 4) active members

The pension cost charge for the year represents contributions payabie by the Group to the schemes and
amounted to £1,805,000 (2015 £1.415,000)

Contributions amounting to £289,000 (2015 £260,000) were payable to the schemes at the end of the financial
year and are included in other creditors

Tha actual retuin on the two defined benefit pension schemes assets over the penod from 1 Apnil 2015 to 31
March 2018 was a loss of £221,000 for MRGPS and £2,716,000 for CRPPAS (loss for the penod from 1 Apnl
2014 to 31 March 2015 was £2,523,000 and £2,857,000 respectively)

The expectad long-term rate of return on assets assumption is assessed by considenng the current level of
ratums on ngk-frae iNvastments (prmanly govemment bonds) and the expectations for the sk premium of each
asset class The expected return for each asset class 1s then weighted based on the asset allocation to develop
the expected long-tenm rate of return on assets assumption for the portfohio
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26 Defined benefit pansion schemes (continued)

The amounts recognised m the consolidated Statement of Financial Position are as follows

31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2015 2014
£'000 £000 £'000
Present vaiue of funded obligations (35,867) {40,808B) (33,508)
Fair value of scheme assets 39,391 45240 40,078
Surplus m scheme 3.524 432 857
The amounts recagrused in the consclidated Income Statement are as follows
31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2015 2014
£000 £'000 £'000
Current service cost (187) (143) (127}
Interest on obligation (1,403) (1,550) (1.528)
Expectsd return on scheme assets 1,557 1,858 1,618
Total (33) 165 166
. =
Actual return on scheme assets (2,927) 5,380 1,489
Movements in the present vatue of the defined benefit cbligation were as foliows
31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2015 2014
£000 £000 £'000
Opening defined benefit obiigation 40,808 33,508 32,862
Current sarvice cost 187 143 127
Interest cost 1,402 1,550 1,525
Cantnbutions by scheme participants 17 18 {52)
Actuanal (gans)/losses (1,604) 6,181 585
Benefits paid . {4,843) (572} {1,369)
35,867 40,808 33,508
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows
31 March 31 March 31 March
2018 2015 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 45,240 40,078 37,438
Expected return on assets 1,667 1,858 1.818
Actuarial (losses)ygains {2,739) 3,532 (319)
Contnbutions by employer 333 438 2822
Contnbutions by scheme participants 24 25 24
Benefits paid (4,943) {572) {1,268)
Expenses paid by scheme {81) {1186} {138)
3B 3IN 45,240 40,078

The total amount recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of actuanal losges on
assets s £2.730,000 (2016 gan of £3,532,000) and the amount recognised for actuanal gains on habiites 1s

£1,604,000 (2015 loss of £6,161,000)

The two schemes are fully funded by the Group and the scheme members who contnbute a percentage of salary
The funding requirements are based on the pension fund's actuanal measurement framework set out in the

funding policies of the plan

The Group expects to contribute £333,000 to its defined benefit pension schemes in 2017 (2016 £438,000).
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26 Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)
The major categones of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows

M March 31 March 31 March

2018 2015 2014
Equities 39.05% 53 89% 54 83%
Bonds 32 T0% 3223% 30 94%
Diversified growth funds 28.25% 13 78% 14 13%

Principal actuanal assumptions at the reporing dates weare {expressed as wetghted averages)

31 March 31 March 31 March

2016 2015 2014
Discount rate 370% 350% 4 65%
Future salary increases 310% 3I10% 345%
Future pension increases 3 30% 3 30% 3 48%
Inflation assumption 2 85% 310% 3 45%

The current mortaily assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates

The assumed life expectations on retrement age 65 are

31 March 31 March 31 March

2016 2015 2015
Number Number Number
Retiring today )
Males 27.6 22 4 222
Females 295 24 4 244
Retiring in 20 years
Males 204 292 285
Females 315 313 3t

Amounts for the current and previous year are as follows

31 March 31 March 1 March 31 March

2018 2015 2014 2013

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Defined benefit obligation (38,867) {40,808) {33,508) {32,602)
Scheme assets 318,331 44,042 39,906 37,438
3,524 4134 8307 4,746

Expenence adjustiments on scheme liabilities 1,604 {6,161) {516) (2,828)
Expenence adiustments on scheme assets {2,739) 3,363 (326) 2702

Under IAS 19 both schemes show 2 surplus n accardance with 1AS 19, the Group has racogrused an assat on
the Statement of Finandial Position in relation to the surplus In the schemes because the Group has an
unconditional nght to realise the surplus dunng the plan or when the plan is settled

The Group 1s exposed to a number of risks relating to the defined benefit schemes {the “schemes") including
assumptions not being borme out in practice The most sigrificant nsks are as follows®
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26. Defined benefit pension schemes {continued)
Aeset volatility

There 1s a risk that a fall in asset values is not matched by corresponding reduction in the value placed on the
schemes The schemes hold a proportion of growth assets, which are expected to outparform corporate or
government bond yields in the (ong term, but gives exposure to volatiity and risk in the short-term

Change In bond ylelds

A decrease n corporate bond yields will increasa the value placed on the scheme's habilities, afthough this will be
partiglly offset by an increase in the value of the scheme’s corporate bond holdings

Inflation risk

The majority of the scheme's liabilities are inked to inflation where higher infiation will lead to higher scheme
liabilities Some of the scheme assets are either unaffected by inflation or loosely correlated with inflaton (eg,
growth assets), meanung that an increase in inflation will genarally increase scheme habilities

Life expoctancy

An increase in life expactancy will lead to an increased value being ptaced on the scheme's habilihes Future
mortality rates cannot be predicted with certainty

Actuarlal assumption sensitivity

The discount rate is set by reference to market conditions at the reporting date, and can vary significantly between
penods The earnings increases are linked to inflation and so set by reference to market condltions at the
reporting date The mortality assumptions usad are set by considering the expenence of tha scheme's membars,
and by msking an aflowance for possible future improvemants in longewvity, Mortality assumptions are difficuit to
set accurately, and forecasting rates of future mortality improvement is inevitably speculative

Actuarlal assumption senslitivity

The discount rate, eamings increases and Infiation rates are set by reference to market conditions at the reporting
date, and can vary significantly between penods

A decrease in the discount rate by 0 1% will increase the scheme’s habiities by £667,000

An ingrease in inflation and safary growth assumptions by 0 1% wil increase the scheme's llabilitres by £256,000 )
27 Note supporting Statement of Cash Flows

Significant non cash transactions i the year i respect of financing activites compnsed unpaid interest which was
capitalised into borrowings of £61,510,000 (2015 £82,096,000) and £48,167 980 of loans were converted to share
capital

28 Immediate and ultimata parent Company

In the opinion of the directors the Company's immediate and ulimate controlling Company 18 Global Radio Group
Limited, a company incorporated 1n Jersey

The largest and smallest Group in which the results of the Company are consolidated 1s that headed by Global
Radio Group Limited

29 Guarantees, financial commitments and contingent liabilities -
Guarantees

The Company will guarantes the debts and iabilihes of certain UK subsidianes (as asterisked in note 33) at the
reporting date in accordance with sacton 479A of the Companies Act 2008 The Company has assessed the
probability of loss under these guarantees as remote

Sacurity

The assets of the Group are pledged to thelr bankers as secunty against loans by way of a fioaling charge over
the assets

VAT Group

The Company 13 a member of a group for VAT far group purposes, resulting it & Jont and several hability for
amounts owing by other Group compames fir unpaid VAT

Financial commitments
The Group has enterad into agreemants with transmission supply compames and digital multiplex operators for the

transmission of its radio stations for perods up 10 2022 at competitive prices and to ensure supply At the year end
the commuitiments to purchase space on transmitters was £90,053,000 (2015 £121,460,000)
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30 Firsttime adoption of IFRS

Thasa financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2018, are the first the Group has prepared 10 accordance
with [FRS For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2015 the Group prepared its financial
statements in accordance with UK GAAP

The date of transition to IFRS (the "transition date™) was 1 Apnl 2014

The accounting poliaes described in note 1 ware applied when preparing the opening IFRS Group Statement of
Financial Pesiion at the transition date and the Group Income Statement, Group Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Group Statement of Financial Position, Group Statement of Changes in Equity and Group Statement of
Cash Flows from the transition date to 31 March 2016

This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Group m restating its UK GAAP Group 8alance Shaet
(to [FRS Group Statement of Financaal Position) as &t 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 and UK GAAP Group Profit
and Loss Account (to IFRS Group Income Statement) and Group Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses (fo
IFRS Group Statement of Other Comprehensive Income) for the yesr ended 31 March 2015,

In preparing its opening IFRS Group Statement of Financial Position and adjusting amounts reported previously in
accordance with UK GAAP the Group has applled IFRS 1 which contains a number of voluntary exemptions and
mandatary exceptions from the requirement to apply IFRS retrospectively

Exceptions and Exemptions used during transition to IFRS

The Group has applied the mandatory exception raquired by IFRS 1 in the conversion from UK GAAP to IFRS
which requires that hindsight 18 not used to create or revisa estimates The estimates previously made by the
Company under UK GAAP were not revisad for the application of IFRS except whana necessary to reflect any
difference [n accounting policies '

Adjustments Made In Connaction with transition fo IFRS

The most significant Impacts of the adoption of IFRS an the Group's prewiously reparted financial infermation are
as follows

s  Under UK GAAP borrowings were valued at the nominal value of the loan &nd then at amortised
cost Under IFRS borrowings are mihially valued at the fair value of thae loan and then amortised cost

« The reclassification of capitalised software costs from tangible fixed assets to intangible assels

» Under UK GAAP the surplus on the defined benefit schemes was nol recognised on the balance
sheet Under IFRS the surplus on the achemes s recegnised on the Statement of Financial Position

impact on the cash flow statements

The Group has made & number of reclassifications to the values reported under UK GAAP in order to prasent its
Statement of Cash Ficws in accordance with IFRS, These reclassification adjustments have no significant Impact
on the results presentod for each type of the Group's activities,

The transttion from UK GAAP to IFRS has not had a matenal impact on the Statement of Cash Flows
The following tables give the reconciilations of

* UK GAAP Group Balance Sheet fo IFRS Group Statement of Financial Position at 1 April 2014 and
31 March 2015

» UK GAAP Group Profit and Loss account to [FRS Group Incoma Statement for the year anded 31
March 2015

+« UK GAAP Group Statement of Totat Recogrised Gains and Lossas to IFRS Group Statement of
Cther Comprehensiva Income for the year ended 31 March 2015
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30 First time adoption of IFRS (continued)
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‘8 Borrowmngs -~ Under UK GAAP borrowings were valued at the nominal value of the loan and then at amortised
cost Under IFRS borrowings are initially valued at the fair value of the loan and then amortised cost

) Software costs - Under UK GAAP capitalised software costs were classified as part of the associated fixed
assets Under IFRS capltalised sofiware costs are classified as intangible assets :

& Radio hcences — Under UK GAAP radio licences were classified as tangible assets Under IFRS radio icences
are classified as intangible assets

@ Amortisation of goodwill — Under UK GAAP goodwill was amortsed over 20 years Under IFRS goodwill 1s not
amortised

o | pase Incantives - Undar UK GAAP lease incentives are amortised over the pencd of associated bensfit being
the shorter of the psricd of the lease or the period to the next rent review date Under IFRS lease incentives are
amorbised over the term cf the lease

0 Loan transaction costs — Under UK GAAP loan transaction costs are recorded as a debtor and then amortised
over the penod of the loan Under IFRS the loan transaction costs are netted off the vaiue of the loan and then
amortised over the period of the loan

@ Sumplus on the definad benefit scheme — Under UK GAAP the surplus on the defined benefit scheme was not
recorded on the balance shaet Under IFRS the surplus on the defined benefit schome is recorded as an asset on
the statement of financial position, with the movemant being taken to the Income statemant and the statement of
comprehensive Income
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Company Batance Sheet
At 31 March 2016
Company number 06261684

Note
Fixed assots
Investmants 33
Current assets
Debtors 34
Cash
Creditors. amounts falling due within one yaar 35
Nat current assets
Total aasets less current lfabilitles
Creditors. amounts falling due after more than one year 36
Net llabllities
Equlty
Share capital a7
Retainaed deficit

The notes on pages 46 to 55 form part of these financial statements

31 March 31 March
2018 2015
£000 £'000
92,440 92,440
92,440 92 440
377,613 373,300
18 9
377,631 373,308
{46,078) (40,323)
331,452 332,986
423,882 425,426
{820,872) (831,049)
{398,980) (405,623)
49,167 -
{446,147} {405,823)
(396,980) (405.623)

The financlal statements were approved and authonsad for issue by the board of directors on 28 July 2016 and

wera signed on its behalf by

&) .S

D D. Singer
Director
29 July 2016




This Is Global Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Share capital Retalned Total aquity
deficit
£'000 £000 £'000
At1 April 2015 - {405,823) {405,623}
Loss for the year - (40,524) {40,524)
Issuwed in the year . 49,187 - 49,167
At 31 March 2016 48,187 (446,147) {396,880)

The notes on pages 48 ta S5 form part of thase financial statements
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31 Accounting policies for the Company financial statements
a) Reporting entity

This 1s Global Limited (the “Company”} is incorporated and domicied in the United Kingdom

The Company's principal activity was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United Kingdom
The Company financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 29 July 2016

b} Statement of compiiance

Tha financial statemants of the Gompany have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
100 Application of Financial Reporing Requirements (“FRS 1007) and Financiai Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosura Framework {*FRS 101" and the Companies Act 2008

As permitted by Section 408(2) of the Companies Act 2008 information about the Compary's employes numbers
and costs have not baeen presented

As permitted by Section 408(3) of the Compenies Act 2008, the Company's Profit and Loss Account and
Statement of Other Comprehensive income and related notes have not been presented as the Company’s Group
Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Companes Act 2008

¢) Functiona! and presentational currency

These financial statements are presented In pounds Stering (£}, which 15 the Company's functional and
presentational currency All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unlass otharwise indicated

d) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, and ére m accordance with the
Compamnes Act 2008

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statermnents

For all perieds up to and including the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company prepared financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP") These financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with FRS
100 and FRS 101,

The Company's deemed transition date to FRS 100 and FRS 101 was 1 Apnl 2014 This change tn the basis of
praparation has matenially aftered the recogmtion and measurement requirements previously appled in
accordance with UK GAAP Details of how the transition from UK GAAP ta FRS 100 and FRS 101 has affectec
the Company's reported position and performance are given in note 39 to the Company financial statemants

In prepanng these financial statements the company has taken advantage of all disclosure exemptions
conferred by FRS 101 Tharefore these financial statemants do not include

certain comparative information as otherwise required by EU endorsed IFRS,

certain disclogsures ragarding the company's capitai,

a Statement of Cash Flows,

the effect of future accounting standards not yet adopted,

the disciosure of the remuneration of key management personnel, and

disclosure of related party transactions with other wholly owned members of the group headed by
This 15 Global Limited

a4 2 8 s =

In addition, and n accordance with FRS 101, further disclosure exemptions have been adopted because
equivalent disclosures are included in the Group financial statements of This 13 Global Limited These financial
statements do not include certain disclosures in respact of

+ Financial Instruments (other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial
instruments af fair value),

+  Fair value measurement (other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial
Instruments at fair value), and

+« |mpairment of assets
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)
" Accounting policies for the Company financial statements {continued)
a) Investments

Investments are included In the Batance Sheet at cost less amounts wntten-off, rapresanting impaimeant in value
Imparment charges are recorded if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recovarable,

f) Golng concern

At the date of these accounts, the directors have carned out a detaled and comprehensive review of the business
and its future prospects In paricular they have compared the forecas! future performance of the Company and
anticipated cash fiows with tha available working capital facilities and covenants contained in the banking
arrangements that form part of the Company's current financing structure and, in the light of currant economic
conddions, have considerad the ability of tha group to meet its abligations as they fall due tn the opinion of the
directors, the Company are expectad fo be able to continue trading within the current arrangements and
consequently the financial statements are prasented on a going concern basis

o) Accounting policies for the Company financial statements

The Company’s accounting polices are the same as the Group’s accounting policies, as detalled in note 1 to the
Group financial statements, for the following

Company FRS 101 accounting policy Group IFRS accounting policy Note
New accounting standards New accounting standards 1g
Cntical accounting estimates and judgments Cntical accounting estimates and judgments 1ih
Debtors Trade and other receivables 1p
Cash Cash 1g
Share capstal Share capital r
Crediors Trade and other payables 1s
Interest recaivable and similar income Finance income and expense 1u
interest payable and similar expense Finance income and expense 1u
Financial instruments Finangial instruments 1v
Current and deferred tax Current and defarred tax tw
Revenue recognition Revenue recognition 1aa
Fair value measurement Fair value measurement lec

32 Directors
Information on Company's directors 1s provided in note 6 to the Group financial statements
33 Investments

Investments in Total
subslidlary
companies
£000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2015 92,440 92.440
At 31 March 2016 52,440 92,440
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33 Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidianes, including subsidiaries held by \ndirect holding companies, are

Name Country % Ownership
Amber Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Angels in Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Arrow Digital Limited United Kingdom 100
Atlantic Broadcasting Limited” United Kingdom 100
Beat FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Belfast Radio imited United Kingdom 100
Border Limited Urnited Kingdom 100
Bristol Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
Bristol Radio Company Limited United Kingdom 100
Buzz FM Limited . United Kingdom 100
Cambridge and Newmarket FM Radio Limtted United Kingdom 100
Capital (COWM) Liruted Umited Kingdom 100
Capitat Goid Hampshire Limited United Kingdom 100
Capitat Gold Kent Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Gotd Manchester Limited* United Kingdom 100
Capital Gotd Sussex Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Interactive Limited United Kingdom 100
Capita! Ontine Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio (London) Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Investments Limited® United Kingdom 100
Capital Radwo Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radic Restaurants Group Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Restaurants Limited United ¥ingdom 100
Capital Radio Trustee Limited Unied Kingdom 100
Capital Telewision Limited United Kingdam 1C0
Capital Xtra Limted” United Kingdom 100
Castleform Limited United Kingdom 100
Central European Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Central Region News Limited United Kingdom 100
Champion FM Limited -~ United Kingdom 100
Cheerdale Limited United Kingdom 100
Chill Radio Limited® Umnited Kingdom 100
Chiltern Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Choice FM Londcn Limited Umted Kingdom 100
Choice FM North Lendon Limited United Kingdom 100
Classic FM BV Netherlands 100
Classic FM Limited” United Kingdom 100
Core Digitel Radio Limited Umited Kingdom 100
Cotswold Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
Deansgate 1001 Limited United Kingdom 100
Devonair Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Diamond FM Linted United Kingdom 100
Digital News Network Limited United Kingdorn 100
Digital Two Limited United Kingdom 100
DQ Radio Services Limited® United Kingdem 100
East Anglan Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Ecast Ventures Limited Unuted Kingdom 100
Essex Radip Limited” United Kingdom 100
Expressway Limited United Kingdom 100
Faza Three (East Midlands) Limited United Kingdom 100

*Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee - Entity's debts and habilites are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)

a3 Investments {continuad)

The Company's subsidianes, including subsidianes hekd by in direct holding companies, are

Name Country % Ownership
First Oxfordshire Radio Company Limited* United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Birmingham Limited* United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Manchester Limited United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio North East Limited” United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Yorkshire Limited® United Kingdom 100
GCap FRB {No 1) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap FRB {No 2) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Local Data Company Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media (CRUD) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media (FPRL) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media (The Jazz) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media Limited United Kingdom 100
Gemini Radio Limited® United Kingdom 100
Glasgow Gold Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Media Ventures Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Music Television Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Music TV Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio (AM) Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Acquisitions Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Digita! Limited United Kingdom 100
Globzl Radio Hampshire Limited® United Kingdom 100
Global Radic Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio London Lumited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Media Management Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Racio Midlands Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Publishing Limited* Urited Kingdom 100
Globai Radio Services Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio UK Limited United Kingdom 100
GM Radio News (UK) Limited United Kingdom 55
GMG Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Greater Manchester Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR {Locai Area) Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR (Trustee Company) Limited Uruted Kingdom 100
GWR (West) Limited* United Kingdom 100
GWR East Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100
GWR Group Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR Hungary (investments) Limited United Kingdom 100 N
GWR Intermational Investments Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR International Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR New Zealand Licences Limited New Zealand 100
GWR New Zealand Limited New Zealand 100
GWR Radio (South East} Limted” United Kingdom 100
GWR Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Hartow FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Healthbuild Limited United Kingdom 100
Heart 106 FM Limited United Kingdom 100
We the Umcorns Limited* United Kingdom 100

*Exemption from Audi by Parent Guarantee - Entity's debts and liabiities are guaranteed by the Company at the
reposting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)

33 Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidiaries, including subsicianes heid by in direct holding companies, are

Country % Ownershlp
Heart Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Heart TV bimited United Kingdom 100
Hereward Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Hit 40 UK Limited Unied Kingdom 100
Hopstar Limited* United Kingdom 100
independent Radia News Limited United Kingdom 55
investors in Radic Limited United Kingdom 100
Invicta Concerts and Promotions Limited United Kingdom 100
Iradio Limited United Kingdom 100
Jams of London Limited United Kingdom 100
Juice Holdeo Limited* United Kingdom 100
Lantern Radio Limited United Kingdom 99
LBC 1152 Limited Urited Kingdom 100
LBC Radic Limited* Urited Kingdom 100
Leicester Sound Limited” United Kingdom 100
Livetime Limited United Kingdom 100
London Broadcasting Company 1936 Limited Urnted F(lngdom 100
Love FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Marcher Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Mid Angha Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Mwah Mwah Limuted Urited Kingdom 100
MXR Holdings Limited United Kingdom 886
MXR Limited United Kingdom 88
My Kinda Bath Limited Unted Kingdom 100
My Kinda Bones Limited United Kingdom 100
My Kinda Shacks Limited United ¥ingdom 100
My Kinda Sguare Limited United Kingdom 100
Neal Street Blues Limited United Kingdom 100
Newsradio com Limuted United Kingdom 100
North East News Limited United Kingdom 100
North East Radic Limited United Kingdom 100
North West News Limited United Kingdom 1Q0
Now Digital {North Wales, Warral and Cheshure) Limited United Kingdom 100
QOcean FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Opus Radio Sales Limited United Kingdom 100
Crchard FM Limited” United Kingdom 100
Orchard Media Limited United Kingdom 100
Oval (708) Limited United Kingdom 100
Plymouth Sound Limited* United Kingdom 100
Power FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Prock Licence (NTLRSL} Limited United Kingdom 100 '
Radio Breeze AM Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio Broadland Limited” United Kingdom 100
Radio Invicta Limited” Umnited Kingdom 100
Radio Mercury Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Radic Orwell Limited United Kingdom 100
Radic Runner Limuted United Kingdom 100
Radio South Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio Trent Limited* United Kingdom 100
RAM FM Limited United Kingdom ~ 100

*Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee - Enlity's debls and hiabilites are guarantead by the Company at the

reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements {continued)

33 Investments (continued)

The Company’s subsidianes, including subsidiaries held by in direct halding companies, are

Name Country % Ownership
Real and Smooth Limited” Umited Kingdom 100
Real Radio (North East) Limited® Uruted Kingdom 100
Real Radio (North West) Limited* United Kingdom 100
Real Radio {(Scotland) Limited* United Kingdom 100
Real Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Rivtera Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Rock Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Saxon Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Scoft Place 1002 Limited United Kingdom 100
Scott Place 1003 Limited United ¥ingdom 100
Scott Place 1004 Limited Unlted Kingdom 100
Smooth Digital Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Smoath Radio Investments Limited* Urited Kingdom 100
Smooth Radic London Limited* United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio Scotltand Limited* United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio West Midiands Limited” United Kingdom 100
South Hams Radio Limited United Kingdom 635
Southern Radio Group Limited* United Kingdom 100
Southern Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Storm (GWR) Lirmted United Kingdom 100
Storm Broadcasting Lirited United Kingdom 100
Suffolk Group Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Talnside Limited* United Kingdam 100
Thames Valley Broadcasting Group Limited United Kingdom 100
Thamaes Valley Broadcasting Linited* United Kingdom 100
Thamesquote Limited” United Kingdom 100
The Arrow (Liverpool) Limited United Kingdom 100
The Arrow (Manchester) Limited United Kingdom 100
The Digital Radic Group (Investments) Linited* United Kingdom ' 100
The Digital Radio Group (West Midlands} Limited United Kingdom 100
The Digital Radio Group Limited™ United Kingdom 100
The Milton Keynes Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
The Northamptonshire Broadcasting Company Limuted United Kingdom 100
The Storm (Digital Radio) Limited United Kingdom 100
TS Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100
Two Countes Radlo Limiteg” United Kingdom 100
Vibe FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Wamngton Runcorn Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
Woelovalocal com Limited* United Kingdom 100
West and South Yorkshire Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
West Country Broadeasting Limited Urited Kingdom 100
Woast Midlands Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Wastward Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Westward Television Limited United Kingdom 100
Wiitshire Radio Lirmited* United Kingdom 100
World Telewvision Produchons Limited United Kingdom 100
Xfm Limited* United Kingdom 100
Xfm Manchester Limited* United Kingdom 100
PopBuzz Limited* United Kingdom 100

“Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee - Entity's dabts and iiabilites are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date in accordance with sechon 479A of the Companies Act 2006
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34 _ Debtors
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
£000 £'000
Loans to subsidianes 367,213 255,420
Amounts owed by group undertakings 5,537 113,490
Deferred tax asset 4 663 4,390
377,513 373,300

36. Creditors' amounts falling due within one year
31 March 2016 31 March 2015

£'000 £'000

Bank loans and overdrafte 25,000 25,000
Accrued interest 17,184 15,159
Amounts owed to group undertakings 3,896 164
46,079 40,323

36 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
31 March 2018 31 March 2015

£'000 £'000

Bank loans 142,736 195,680
Other loans 678,137 635,369
820,872 831,048

37.  Share capital
31 March 31 March

2016 2015
£ £
Issued, called up and fully pald
Qrdinary shares of £1 49,166,981 1
49 186,981 1

During the year £49,166,980 of loans ware converted to 49,168,980 ordinary £1 shares which were issued, called
up and fully paid

38 Related party transactions

As disclosed 10 note 22 and In accordance with the exemptions 1n FRS 101 the Company is not required to
disclose related party transactions with key management personnel or between members of the Group The
Company has not completed any refated party transactions with any other entities or paries
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)
3%  First adoption of FRS 100 and FRS 101

These financiat statements, for the year ended 31 March 2016, are the first the Company has prepared in
accordance with FRS 101 For penods up 1o and including the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
prapared its financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP,

The date of transition to FRS 101 was 1 Apni 2014 (the “transition date”)

The accounting policies descnbed in note 31 were appled when prepanng the opening FRS 101 Balance Sheet
at the transiion date and the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet
and Statement of Changes in Equity from the transiton date to 31 March 2016

This note explains the pnncpal adjustments made by the Company In restafing its UK GAAF financial results to
FRS 101 as at 1 Apnl 2014 and 31 March 2015 and for the year ended 31 March 2015

This note explans the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its UK GAAP Balance Sheet as at
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015, UK GAAP Profit and Loss Account and Statement of Recognised Gains and
Losses (to FRS 101 Statement of Other Comprahensive Income) for the year ended 31 March 2015

in preparing its opening FRS 101 Balance Sheet and adjusting amounts reported previously in accordance with
UK GAAP the Company has applied IFRS 1 which contains a number of voluntary exemptions and mandatory
exceptions from the requirement to apply IFRS retrospectively.

Exceptions and Exemptions used during transition to IFRS

The Company has applied the mandatory exception required by IFRS 1 in the conversion from UK GAAP to FRS
101 which requires that hindsight 18 not used to create or reviee estimates. The estimates previously made by the
Company under UK GAAP were not revised for the application of FRS 101 except where necessary to reflect any
differance in accounting policies

Adlustments Made In Connection with transition to FRS 101

The most significant impacts of the adoption of IFRS on the Group's previously reported financial information are
as follows

¢ Under FRS 101 loans are valued at far value on mitial recognition, under UK GAAP loans were
valued at nommnal value

+ Under FRS 101 loans to subsidianes are claseified as creditors, under UK GAAP they were
classified as an nwestment

* Under FRS 101 loan transacbon costs are netted off the loan which they relate to, under UK GAAP
they were recogmsed as & debtor

The following tables gwe the reconcihations of

» UK GAAP Balance Shest to FRS 101 Balance Sheet at 1 Apnil 2014

+ UK GAAP Balance Sheet to FRS 101 Balance Shest at 31 March 2015

s UK GAAP Profit and Loss Account to FRS 101 Profit and Loss accounting for the year ended 31
March 2015

+ UK GAAP Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses to FRS 107 Statement of Other
Comprehensive [ncome for the year ended 31 March 2015
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)

ag First adoption of FRS 100 and FRS 101 (continued)

Rotonciltstion of the Com) Batance Bhoet st 1 Apr 2014
Rechasification of laans we™ Losn Jon costa <
UK QAAP o subsldisrien to FAS 101
borrowinos H
£ 000 £'000 zobo E 200 E 000
Fined ansate
Invaetments 348380 4 - - B0 40
66T {285.420) - . 90,940
Curmant asséts
Cosh . . - - .
Dablary a0AT 255420 FAl [r88} 2442650
1) 385 470 3 Fe8) 34+
CeredRars. xmounts fafing due withis one year {42 181) - - - (42 181)
N cUrreIt HsatE 4T 412 255420 31 (7“; 02 095
Totsl nasste lasa cunmn! {ebliillss W3TT2 k3 786) 303 038
Craditars smounis falting dus sfter mons then ons year {182 297) . (8 501) 788 {766 120)
Nt i 1.1 ) o5
Equity
Share capin! . - - - -
R s 1 s - A
of Thar Bahynca Bhoot at 31 Hanch 2018
Rrciassification of losoe inge ™ Loan costs ¥
UK GAAP o subsidiuries 1o FRE 101
. borrawirias !
£ 000 L2 ] E'QDD Ly 1 E'0D0
Plued anasis
invasimenis M7 000 2654200 . " 12 440
M7.e80 (255420 - - 02440
Curteni asssin
Qablars 144 888 255420 4 350 (1 478) 373 300
Cush —— - - ]
114,978 255429 AWM {1,478 $70.000
Credliors soounts falling dus withla one youar {40 37%) - - - (40 223)
LI
Nel currsnt ausels T3 755 420 3300 T 478) 332 686
Total asssis hss curren Habilitdes 422612 - 4380 {1478) 425428
Cradhors amounis falling due alter mem than ane year {804 119) . {28 406} 1478 {831 04y
W bt e m— oL -
Equity
Share capiisl . - - - -
Relalneg gefich g‘ﬁ - % - imﬁas
Prrofit anvd toss account for year andod 31 March 2018
of Baor gs ™ Loan trar
foana to costs '
vka subsidiaries to FRS 101
borrowings ™
EOG0 £000 €000 £009 £'900
Tumover - M - -
Cparabng charges - . - .
Oparsting loss - - - .
Dividends recetved 26725 - - 26725
Finance Incoma 20 498 - - - 20 498
Frnance expanss {89 851) - (21 B14) . (@t 785)
Loss on ordinary activitios before taxstion (42 728) - (21 814} . 144 B42)
Tax ar loss on arcinary activilies 2648 - 4 369 . 1408
Loss for the financisl yaar 113 oszt . {17, 44§= - |m30—527)
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39.  First adoption of FRS 100 and FRS 101 {continued)

Raconclllation of the Company statemont of comprshansive ncoma for the yosr ended 31 March 2018
Reclasallication of Bo p™ Loen
toans to costs ™
UR aAAP subsidlartes to PRI 101
borrowinas

£'000 £000
Loss forthe financial your (13082) (17 445) B (20 527}
itsms thet may be reciasifled to profi or
ices
Oihar compretansive iIncome - - - -
Incraase i peansion surpius not MECognised b N -
Other comprehsnsive loas for tha yoar, net of
tax {12,082} - {17,445y - (30,527
Total comprehonsive loss for the year 12 08:2) - [1k] M5) - 30,527

™ Raclassification of loans to subsidiarias to borrowings — Under UK GAAP loans to subsidianes were recorded as
an investment. Under FRS 101 loans dua from subsidianes ara recorded as a debtor

® Borrowings — Under UK GAAP horrowings were valued at the naminal value of the loan and then at amortised
cost Under FRS 101 borrowings are imitially valued at the fair value of the loan and then amortised cost

@ { oan transaction cosis — Under UK GAAP loan transaction costs are recordad as a debtor and then amortised
over the penod of the loan Undar FRS 101 the loan transaction costs are netted off the value of the loan and then

amaorhsad avar the panaod of tha loan
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